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R O B E R T S , C H E R R Y A N D C O M P A N Y 
Certified Public Accountants, Consultants 

October 27, 2010 

Suzanne H. EUiott, CPA 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

P.O. Box 94397 

Baton Rouge, La 70804-9397 

Dear Ms. EUiott: 

During our quality review of the Bossier Parish School Board, we noted that the Title II program should 

have been a major program and tested accordingly. Additionally, the cUent had the wrong CFDA number 

for that program. We performed the additional work necessary and did not have any additional findings 

or anything else to report We have corrected the Single Audit Report to add Title fi as a major program, 

revised the CFDA number, and dual dated the opinion letter. We have also resubmitted the report to the 

Federal Clearinghouse on October 19,2010. 

Therefore, we are sending you the revised Single Audit Report for the Bossier Parish School Board for the 

year ended June 30,2009. Also, we are sending the revised data collection form along with the original 

CAFR and the original BEEF Agreed Upon Procedures that were issued. 

Please feel free to contact me at 31S-222-2222 if you have any questions regarding our reissuance. 

Sincerely, 

Roberts, Cherry & Company 
A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 

J. Thomas ,ni,CPA,CFE 

Under provisions of state law. this report is a public 
document.Acopyofthereporthasbeen submitted to 
the entity and other appropriate public officials. The 
report is available for public inspection at the Baton 
Rouge office ofthe Legislative Auditor and, where 
appropriate, at the office of the pahsh clerk of court. 

Release Hate I I j ID h 

A Corporatioo o f CertiCied Public Accountants • P. O. BOX 4278 • SHREVEPORT. LA 71134-0278 • (318)222-2222 • FAX (318) 226-7150 
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Dr. Jack E. Raley, President 
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Dear President and Memî ers of the Board: 

The Comprehensive Annual Finandal Report of the Bossier Parish School Board, herein 
after referred to as the "School Board", for the fiscal year ended June 30,2009, is hereby 
transmitted. This report has been prepared by following the guidelines recommended by 
the Association of School Business Officials International and the Govemment Finance 
Officers Assodation ofthe United States of An>erica and Canada. This letter of transmittal 
Is designed to complement the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and 
should be read in conjundion with it. 

J. W. Slack 

2424 D n j ( ^ DrtM 

Didricir 

Koftnath K W g ^ n s 
3201 CImwda)* Ptic* 
BosMfCty^LA 71111 
Oakdfl 

EiWyRayPmtoy 
1Bie L M SbMt 

C*j, LA 71112 

Julian Darby 
1130eMerty&trMt 
Bouw CdK LA 71113 
DitrtctIO 

A. Management Responsibility Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the 
completeness and fairness of the presentation including all disdosures, rests with the 
School Board. We believe this report, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects, 
and that it is presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the results of operations and 
financial position of the School Board. Further, all disclosures necessary to eriable the 
reader to gain an adequate understanding of our system's financial affairs have been 
induded. 

B. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report The Comprehensive Annual Finandal 
Report consists of three sections: the introductory section, the finandal section and the 
statistical section. 

Unda l lMMb 
1B30\hnua 
BouOT City; U 71112 
Otinctll 

HackKnottB 
5007 KantiMrtti DriM 
Bouw Cty, LA 71112 
Ontncl12 

1. The Introductory Section. This section includes this letter of transmittal, the 
School Board's organizational chart, recognition of elected officials ofthe School 
Board, and a list of selected administrative offidals. 

2. The Financial Section. The School Board's finandal statements and schedules 
are presented in accordance with the standards set forth by the Govemmental 
Accounting Standards Board. The finandal section consists of Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, basic finandal statements, required supplemental 
infonnation, and combining nonmajor and individual fund statements and 
schedules. 

BOSSIER PARISH S C H O O L STSTEM 
'An Equal Opportunity Educational Agency' 



Combining nonmajor statements are presented when a School Board has more than one 
nonmajor fund of a given fund type. Various statements are also used to demonstrate finance-
related legal and contractual compliance, present other information deemed useful, and provide 
details of data summarized in the financial statements. 

3. The Statistical Section. Included in this section Is data prepared from both accounting and non-
accounting sources for the purpose of reflecting financial trends and fiscal capacity ofthe School 
Board, as well as other social and economic information. The data is presented for the past ten 
years. 

The School Board provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels pre-
kindergarten through grade 12. These services include regular and enriched academic education, special 
education for handicapped children, and vocational education. They also include providing instnjctional 
personnel, instructional materials, instructional facilities, food service facilities, administrative support, 
business services, systems operations, plant maintenance and bus transportation. These basic services 
are supplemented by a wide variety of offerings in the fine arts and athletics. 

C. Reporting Entity This report includes all entities or organizations that are required to be included in 
the School Board's reporting entity. The basic criteria for determining whether a govemmental 
department, agency, institution, commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should 
be included in a governmental unit's reporting entity is financial accountability. Financial accountability 
includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's goveming body and either the ability of 
the primary govemment to impose it's will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden 
relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary government should 
be included in its reporting entity. 

The financial statements present the Bossier Parish School Board (the primary government). Based on 
the above criteria, there are no component units included in the School Board's reporting entity. 

D. Economic Condition, Outlook, and Long-term Financial Planning Bossier Parish is located in 
northwest Louisiana and is a part ofthe economic "hub" for this region. During 2008-2009, Bossier Parish 
has continued to experience a considerable level of new construction. The School Board has completed 
two new elementary schools, three wing additions and will open a new high school for the 2009-2010 
school year. New commercial and residential constmction are financial indicators of a stable economy. 
Tourist activity continues to be strong, primarily as a result of riverboat gaming and the Louisiana 
Boardwalk shopping area. 

Barksdale Air Force Base, which currently employs over 7,000 people in the area, remains as viable and 
active as it has in the past. The mission of Barksdale is still a major part of our national defense. 
Barksdale has been named the headquarters for the Global Strike Command for the United States Air 
Force. This new command will provide over 900 new jobs and will provide significant economic growth for 
the area. 

With the Red River connecting Bossier Parish to the city of Shreveport and Caddo Parish, the condition of 
the Shreveport economy directly and indirectly affects Bossier Parish. The economy of Shreveport 
remains stable. Growth experienced in retail sales, employment, and residential and commercial 
constmction are evidence of this growth and stability. The expansion ofthe Caddo Bossier Port continues 
to have positive effects on the economy and provides a major link with other parts ofthe state. 1-20 and 1-
49 provide great access to the area. Riverboat gaming continues to make a significant contribution to the 
local economy. 

Sales tax collections for the School Board continue to be strong and exceeded 2007-2008 collections by 
$4,695,931. 



E. Major Operational or Financial Concems Several issues such as classroom space in growing 
areas ofthe parish, teachers and support personnel pay, maintaining technology In our classrooms, and 
rising health costs are areas of concern. All of these issues influence our first priority, which is the 
instmctional program for our students. 

F. Single Audit The School Board is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the 
provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133. Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Oroanizations. Information related to 
this single audit includes the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, findings and 
recommendations, if applicable, and auditors' reports on internal control and compliance with applicable 
laws, regulations, contracts and agreements. Bossier Parish School Board has contracted with an 
independent auditor to conduct the annual audit. Our independent auditor performed a single audit for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and has issued the single audit report under a separate binder. 

G. Internal Control The management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining a system of internal control. The objectives of a system of intemal control are to provide 
reasonable assurance that School Board policy, administrative and accounting procedures, and grant 
administration procedures are fully implemented and are being adhered to. In addition, intemal controls 
are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss 
from unauthorized use or disposition and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framewori^. We believe the School Board's internal 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial 
transactions. 

As a part ofthe School Board's single audit, described eariier, tests are made to determine the adequacy 
of intemal control, including that portion related to federal awards programs, as well as to determine that 
the School Board has complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

H. Budgetary Control In addition, the School Board maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance 
with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the School Board. 
Activities ofthe general fund and special revenue funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. 
The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the 
appropriated amount) is established by function by fund. School Board policy provides that expenditures 
within a fund may not exceed appropriations by more than five percent. Revisions to the budget require 
School Board approval. 

I. Cash Management Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, 
certificates of deposits, and instruments issued by the United States Govemment or its federal agencies. 
Deposits in financial institutions are also collateralized by instruments issued by the United States 
Govemment or federal govemment agencies created by an act of Congress and insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. The School Board earned interest revenue of $1,071,796 for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2009. 

Interest was distributed as follows: 

General Fund $ 256,898 
Capital Projects 345,404 
Bossier Education Excellence Pennanent 357,716 
Other Govemmental 111.778 

Total $1.071.796 



J. Risk Management The School Board maintains a combination of self-insurance and stop-loss 
coverage to lower its potential risk of loss from property damage, theft, and claims against employees. 
The School Board is self-insured for group hospitalization. 

K. Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits The School Board provides a defined benefit 
pension plan for its employees through two cost-sharing multiple-employer statewide plans. The School 
Board has no obligations in connection with employee benefits offered through these plans beyond it's 
required payments to the plan. 

The School Board also provides post-retirement medical, dental and life insurance for its retired 
employees. As ofthe end ofthe cun'ent fiscal year, there were 1,219 retired employees receiving group 
medical, dental and life insurance benefits which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Additional information on the School Board's pension an'angements and post employment benefits can be 
found in Notes 6 and 7 In the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 

L. Independent Audits The report of our independent certified public accountants, Roberts, Cherry and 
Company, follows as an integral component of this report. Their audit ofthe basic financial statements 
and accompanying combining and individual fund statements and schedules was performed in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and, accordingly, 
included a review ofthe School Board's system of budgetary and accounting controls. 

M. Awards The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) ofthe United States 
and Canada issues a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and 
the Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) issues a Certificate of 
Excellence in Financial Reporting to govemments for their Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR). To be awarded these certificates, a govemment must publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 
whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal 
requirements. These certificates are valid for a period of one year only. The School 
Board has received both certificates for each year, beginning with fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1991. 

Management believes that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2009, which will be submitted to GFOA and ASBO for review, continues to conform to the principles and 
standards of each organization. 

N. Acknowledgments It is our desire that this report contains the necessary information and data, 
which will provide a better understanding ofthe operations ofthe school system. It is further hoped that 
this report has been designed in a manner to be used as an administrative tool and general source of 
information so as to enhance our accountability. 

Respectfully submitted, 

D. C. Machen C ' ' 
Superintendent 

Frank Rougeaur 
Director of Finance and Business Affairs 
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ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 
CaHBed PtAlic Accoimtants, Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board Members 
Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana 

Basic Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying basic finandai statements of the 
govemmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infoimation ofthe Bossier 
Parish Sdiool Board ("School Board") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed In the table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on thiese financial statements based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditino Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement An audit includes consideration of intemal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe School Board's intemal contiiol overfinandal reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overafl financial statement 
pres^itation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position ofthe govemmental activities, each major furKi, and the aggregate remaining 
fund infonnation of the School Board as of June 30,2009, and the respective changes in fir^ndal position 
and cash fiows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in confomiity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Gov^mnrwnt Auditing Standards, we have also issued under separate cover our report 
dated December 23, 2009, on our consideration of the School Board's intemal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
Intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the Intemal control over finandal reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit perfomied In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered in 
assessing the results of our audit 

Required Supplemental Information The Managements Discussion and Analysis and the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedules as listed in tiie table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are suppler^ental Infonnation required by tiie Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. 
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted prindpally of inquiries of management 
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regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of tiie required supplemental information. 
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Supplemental Information Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the bas/c 
financial statements that collectively comprise the School Board's basic finandal statements. The 
accompanying information identified in the table of contents as supplemental infonnation is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the tmsic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in tiie audit of the basic financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The information identified in tiie table of contents as the Introductory and 
Statistical Sections has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the bas/c 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no (pinion on it. 

kc?Qfii?a, Cwcea^ h^n CoMp^̂ y 
ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
December 23, 2009 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
June 30, 2009 

The discussion and analysis of Bossier Parish School Board's ("School Board") financial performance 
provides an overall review of the School Board's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2009. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School Board's financial performance as 
a whole; readers should also review the transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements and 
financial statements to enhance their understanding ofthe School Board's financial perfonnance. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element ofthe reporting model adopted by the 
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements 
- and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Govemments issued June 1999. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Key financial highlights for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Governmental funds reported a net change deficit of $16.7 million which includes in the General Fund an 
excess of $4.1 million, an excess in the Sales Tax Fund of $.4 million, a deficit in the Bossier Parish 
School Board Unified Constmction Fund of $27.3 million, an excess in the Bossier Education Excellence 
Permanent Fund of $3.1 million, and a excess in Other Governmental Funds of $.6 million. The deficit in 
the Unified Construction Funds is a result completion of several school construction projects. 

Total revenues for all govemmental funds increased $19.1 million. This was due largely to an increase in 
the Minimum Foundation Program and increased sates tax collections. 

Total spending for all governmental funds was $227.1 million. Most ofthe School Board's taxes and state 
Minimum Foundation Program Funds were used to support the cost of these six areas: regular program 
instruction - $76.0 million; special programs instruction - $25.9 million; student transportation - $11.9 
million; plant services - $17.9 million; other instructional - $8.7 million and school food service - $10.1 
million. 

USING THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so that the reader can understand Bossier Parish School Board as an entire 
operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial 
activities. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the 
School Board as a whole, presenting both an aggregate view of the School Board's finances and a 
longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. These 
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
Fund statements also may give some insights into the School Board's overall financial health. Fund 

financial statements report the School Board's operations in more detail than the govemment-wide 
financial statements by providing information about the School Board's most significant funds - such as 
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the School Board's General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, BPSB Unified Construction Fund, and the Bossier 
Education Excellence Permanent Fund. The remaining statement - the Statement of Fiduciary Assets 
and Liabilities presents financial Information about activities for which the School Board acts solely as an 
agent for the benefit of students and parents. 

Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

Introductory Section 
Transmittal Letter 

Certificates of Excellence in Financial Reporting 
Organization Chart 

Elected Officials and Selected Administrative 
Officers 

Financial Section 
(Details outlined in the next chart) 

Statistical Section 
Financial Trends 

Revenue Capacity 
Debt Capacity 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Operating Information 
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Financial Section 

Required Supplemental Information 

Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) 

Basic Financial Statements 

Government-wide 
Financial Statements 

< r ^ Fund Financial 
Statements 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Required Supplemental Information 

Budgetary Information for Major Funds 

Supplemental Information 

Nonmajor Funds Combining Statements & Budgetary Information 
Agency Funds Statements/Schedules 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members 

Our auditors have provided assurance in their independent auditors' report, located immediately 
preceding this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements are fairly 
stated. The auditors have also provided varying degrees of assurance regarding the Required 
Supplemental Information and the Supplemental Information identified above. A user of this report should 
read the independent auditors' report carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each 
ofthe other parts in the Financial Section. 

The School Board assumes full responsibility for the accuracy ofthe Introductory and Statistical Sections 
as they were prepared without the association ofthe independent auditors. 
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REPORTING THE SCHOOL BOARD AS A WHOLE 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

While these documents contain the large number of funds used by the School Board to provide programs 
and activities, the view of the School Board as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the 
question, "How did the School Board do financially during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009?". The 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities answer this question. These statements include 
all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting method used by 
most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting considers all ofthe cun"ent year's revenues and 
expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the School Board's net assets-the difference between assets and liabilities, 
and changes in those assets. This change in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for 
the School Board as a whole, the financial position ofthe School Board has improved or diminished. The 
relationship between revenues and expenses is the School Board's operating results. However, the 
School Board's goal is to provide services to its students, not to generate profits as commercial entities 
do. One must consider many other non-financial factors, such as the quality ofthe education provided 
and the safety ofthe schools to assess the overall healtti ofthe School Board. 

The Sitatement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities report the following activity for the School Board: 

Govemmental activities -Al l ofthe School Board's services are reported here, including instruction, 
plant services, transportation, and food services. Property taxes, sales taxes. Minimum Foundation 
Program funds, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

REPORTING THE SCHOOL BOARD'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

The School Board's fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant 
funds - not the School Board as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by 
bond covenants. However, the School Board establishes many other funds to help it control and manage 
money for particular purposes (like the School Food Service) or to show that it is meeting legal 
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money (for example grants received from the 
U.S. Department of Education). The School Board's governmental funds use the following accounting 
approach: 

Governmental funds - Most of the School Board's activities are reported in govemmental funds, 
which focus on how money flows into and out of funds and the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending in future periods. They are reported using an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view ofthe 
School Board's operations and the services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the 
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reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the School Board's programs. The relationship (or differences) between 
govemmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds are reconciled in Statements D and F. 

Proprietary funds - When the School Board charges customers for the services it provides - whether 
to outside customers or to other units ofthe School Board - these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The School Board uses internal service 
funds (the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities that provide supplies and services 
for the School Board's other programs and activities - the employee group health fund. 

THE SCHOOL BOARD AS TRUSTEE 

Reporting the School Board's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The School Board is the tnjstee, or fiduciary, for its student activities fund. All of the School Board's 
fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities. These 
activities are excluded from the School Board's other financial statements because the School Board 
cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The School Board is responsible for ensuring that the 
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

THE SCHOOL BOARD AS A WHOLE 

The School Board's net assets were $124.9 million at June 30, 2009. Of this amount, $19.6 million was 
unrestricted net assets. Restricted net assets are reported separately to show legal constraints from debt 
covenants and enabling legislation that limit the School Board's ability to use those net assets for day-to­
day operations. The analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and change in net assets (Table 
2) of the School Board's governmental activities. The numbers in these condensed statements 
sometimes varies slightly from the government-wide financial statements due to rounding. 
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Current and other assets 
Restricted assets 
Capital assets, net of 
depreciation 
Total assets 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, 
debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

TABLE 1 
Net Assets (in m 

June 30, 

$ 

accumulated 

net of related 

illions) 

Govemmental Activities 

2009 
73.10 
26.40 

131.00 
230.50 

16.80 
88.80 

105.60 

72.30 
33.00 
19.60 

124.90 

$ " 

$ -

2008 
88.10 
26.40 

103.60 
218.10 

16.30 
93.70 

110.00 

64.60 
30.60 
12.90 

108.10 

Percent 
Change 

( 17.00% ) 

26.40% 
5.70% 

3.10% 
( 5.20% ) 
( 4.00% ) 

11.90% 
7.80% 

51.90% 
7.80% 

The $19.6 million in unrestricted net assets ofgovemmental activities represents accumulated results of 
all past years' operations. It means that if the School Board had to pay off all of its bills today including all 
of its non-capital liabilities (compensated absences for example), there would be a surplus of $19.6 
million. 

The net assets for the School Board increased by $16.8 million or 13.5% during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2009. This increase was caused mainly by an increased funding in the Minimum Foundation 
Program (MFP). 

The results of this year's operations for the School Board as a whole are reported in the Statement of 
Activities. Table 2, on the next page, takes the information from that Statement, rounds off the numbers, 
and rean-anges them slightly so that the reader can see total revenues for the year. 
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TABLE 2 
Changes in Net Assets (in millions) 

For The Years Ended June 30, 

Revenues: 

Program revenues 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contributions 

General revenues 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
State equalization (Minimum Foundation) 
BEEF (Gaming Revenues) 
Interest and investment eamings 
Other general revenues 
Total revenues 

Function/program expenses: 
Instruction 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 

Student services 
Instructional staff suf^ort 
Genera! administration 
School administration 

Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Food services 
Community service programs 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Net assets - beginning 
Adjustment 
Net assets - ending 

2009 

2.4 
22.0 

36.1 
43.9 

96.1 
3.1 
1.2 
5.8 

210.6 

2008 

2.5 
20.4 

32.5 
39.2 

87.2 
3.1 
3.2 
3.2 

191.3 

66.9 
29.4 
15.4 

9.0 
11.3 
2.4 

12.2 
2.1 

17.8 
10.8 
1.2 

10.3 
0.1 
3.2 

192.1 
18.5 

108.1 
(1.7) 

124.9 

6Z4 
24.9 
15.6 

8.4 
9.8 
2.9 

10.8 
2.9 

15.5 
11.6 
1.3 

10.6 
0.1 
2.7 

179.5 
11.8 
96.3 
-

$ 108.1 

Percentage 
Change 

-4.0% 
7.8% 
0.0% 

11.1% 
12.0% 
10.2% 

0.0% 
-62.5% 
81.3% 
10.1% 

7.2% 
18.1% 
-1.3% 
0.0% 
7.1% 

15.3% 
-17.2% 
13.0% 

-27.6% 
14.8% 
-6.9% 
-7.7% 
-2.8% 

0.0% 
18.5% 

7.0% 
56.6% 
12.3% 

0.0% 
15.5% 
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Governmental Activities 
Revenues 

(As a Percentage of Total Revenues) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

 
 

 
  Charges for services,

1.1%
 Interest & investment 

earnings,
0.6%

 BEEF (gaming 
revenues),

1.5%

  Minimum Foundation 
program,

45.7%
  Other general 

revenues,
2.5%

  Operating grants,
10.5%

  Ad valorem taxes,
17.2%

  Sales taxes,
20.9%

 
Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities 
 
 Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs:  The single largest source of 

revenue to the Bossier Parish School Board for grants and contributions not restricted to a specific 
program is the State Equalization or commonly called the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP).  The 
MFP distribution is based on a formula adopted by the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary 
Education and approved by the Louisiana Legislature.  The chart below lists the actual increases or 
decreases in MFP funds for the past three years in millions. 

 
Fiscal 
Year  General  

Child Nutrition 
Program Total MFP  

Percentage 
Increase 

      
10.2%
15.2%
10.1%

2006-2007  $73.9 $1.8 $75.7  
2007-2008  $85.2 $2.0 $87.2  
2008-2009  $93.6 $2.4 $96.0  

 
In FY 2008-2009, the School Board received $96.0 million or 45.7% of its total revenue from the MFP. 
These revenues are deposited in the General Fund and the School Food Service Fund only.  Most of 
the $8.8 million or 10.1% increase was used for salary increases. 
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Sales and Use Tax Revenues: Sales and use tax revenues are the second largest source of 
revenues for the Bossier Parish School Board. A 1.75% sales tax rate is levied upon the sale and 
consumption of goods and services within the parish. The chart below lists the sales and use tax 
revenues for the past three years in millions. 

Fiscal Year 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

Sales Tax 
$39.0 
$39.2 
$43.9 

Percentage 
Increase 

8.90% 
0.52% 
12.0% 

All sales and use tax revenues are deposited into the Sales Tax Fund from which it is transferred to 
fund primarily the operations of the School Board. This represents 20.8% of the total revenues 
received. Sales tax revenue received in fiscal 2009 has increased significantly over the amount 
received in the 2008 fiscal year. 

Ad Valorem Tax Revenues: Ad valorem tax revenues, also called property tax revenues, are the 
third largest source of revenue for the School Board. Ad valorem collections are based upon the 
number of mills (approved annually by the School Board) and the taxable assessed value (established 
by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor), subject to the limitations approved by the voters and the 
Louisiana Legislature. The chart below lists the ad valorem tax deposits for the past three years in 
millions. 

Fiscal 
Year 

2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

General 
$24.5 
$24.9 
$26.7 

Debt 
Service 

$7.5 
$7.6 
$9.4 

Total 
Ad Valorem 

Taxes 
$32.0 
$32.5 
$36.1 

Percentage 
Increase 
24.50% 
01.56% 
11.1% 

In FY 2008-2009. the School Board deposited $36.1 million of ad valorem tax revenues into the 
General Fund and the Debt Service Fund. This represents 17.2% ofthe total revenues received. 

Operating Grants and Contributions: Operating grants and contributions are the fourth largest 
source of revenues for the School Board. This revenue type is primarily comprised of federal grants 
with some state grants included. These grants and contributions are specifically restricted to certain 
programs, and therefore, are netted against the costs of these programs to show a true net cost. The 
chart below shows the operating grants and contributions by fund source In millions. 

Percentage 
Total I ncrease/Decrease 
$18.4 (14.4%) 
$20.4 10.9% 
$22.0 7.8% 

Fiscal Year 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

General 
$2.4 
$4.2 
$4.7 

Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
$16.0 
$16.2 
$17.3 
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In FY 2008-2009, the School Board received $22.0 million in operating grants and contributions which 
represents 10.5% of total revenues received. 

Program Expenses and Revenues - Governmental Activities 

Expenses are classified by functions/programs. The related revenues are comprised of specific charges 
for the services and operating grants and contributions received to offset the expenses for the specific 
program. 

Instmctional services for fiscal 2009 totaled $111.8 million, 58.2% of total expenses. The remaining 
expenses are considered support services and related to those functions that support the Instructional 
services provided, such as administration, transportation, food services, and plant services. Support 
services, food services, and community service programs for fiscal 2009 totaled $77.1 million, 40.2% of 
total expenses. 

The remaining expenses of $3.2 million, 1.7% of total expenses, consist of interest expense on long-temn 
obligations. 

The program revenues and charges for services for fiscal 2009 directly related to these expenses totaled 
$24.4 million which resulted in net program expense of $167.7 million. These net program expenses are 
funded by general revenues ofthe School Board. 

Revenues for the School Board increased $18.8 million, 9.8% from the previous year due mainly to an 
increase In Minimum Foundation Program funding. 

Expenses for the School Board increased $12.6 million, 7.0% from the previous year due mainly to salary 
Increases and increases in group insurance costs. 

Governmenta l Act iv i t ies - Costs o f Service 

As reported In the Statement of Activities, the cost of all govemmental activities this year was $192.1 
million. 
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The table below presents the cost of each of the School Board's six largest functions - regular 
instructional programs, special Instructional programs, plant services, other instmctional programs, 
student transportation, and school administration, as well as each program's net cost (total cost less 
revenues generated by the activities). As discussed above, net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the School Board's taxpayers by each of these functions. Providing this information allows the 
analysis of the cost of each function in comparison to the benefits provided by that function. 

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 
Government Activities (in millions) 

Regular programs 
Special programs 
Plant services 
Other instructional 
Student Transportation 
School Administration 
All other 

Totals 

Total Costs of Service 

2009 

$66.7 
29.4 
17.8 
15.4 
10.8 
12.2 
39.8 

$192.1 

2008 

$62.4 
24.9 
15.5 
15.6 
11.6 
10.8 
38.7 

$179.5 

Percentage 
Change 

6.9 
18.1 
14.8 
(1.3) 
(6.9) 
13.0 
2.8 
7.0 

Net Costs of Service 

2009 

$65.7 
22.7 
17.7 
14.6 
10.6 

12 
24.4 

$167.7 

2008 

$61.4 
19.4 
15.5 
14.9 
11.5 
10.8 
23.1 

$156.6 

Percentage 
Change 

7.0 
17.0 
14.2 
(2.0) 
(7.8) 
11.1 
5.6 
7.1 

The increases In regular programs, special programs, and school administration are due to salary 
Increases and increases In group insurance costs. 

The Increases in costs for plant services were due to salary increases. Increases in group Insurance 
costs, and Increases In building repairs and maintenance. 
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Governmental Act iv i t ies 
Net Cost of Services 

(As a Percentage of Total Net Cost of Services) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

All other 
29.4% 

School 
Administration 

5.9% 

Student 
Transportation 

5.2% 

Regular programs 
32.3% 

Special programs 
11.2% 

Other instmctional 
7.2% 

Plant ser\flces 
8.7% 

THE SCHOOL BOARD'S FUNDS 

As the School Board completed this year, our governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$78.9 million which is a decrease of $16.5 million from last year. The primary reasons for these 
decreases are: 

General Fund experienced an Increase In fund balance of $4.1 million. While revenues increased 
$10.9 million from prior year's revenue amount, expenditures also Increased $9.4 million over prior 
year's expenditure amount. The excess of expenditures over revenues of $37.2 million was 
decreased by transfers in from other funds of $41.9 million. The increase In revenues was mainly 
due to an Increase In funding for the Minimum Foundation Program and increased tax collections. 

Sales Tax Fund revenues and expenditures Increased 12 percent from 2008 to the 2009 fiscal year. 

The Bossier Parish School Board Unified Construction Fund experienced a decrease to fund balance 
of $27.2 million due mainly to completion of several school construction projects during the 2009 
fiscal year. 

Bossier Education Excellence Permanent Fund experienced an increase in fund balance of $3.0 
million. Revenues decreased slightly over the 2008 amount, while expenditures decreased $.4 
million over prior year. The decrease in expenditures is due to decreased interest revenues which Is 
the only monies which can be spent in this fund. 
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The Creosote Settlement Fund Is new in 2009 and accounts for litigation proceeds to be used for 
construction at Plantation Park Elementary School. The fund had balance at year-end of $1.8 
million. 

At June 30, 2009, the School Board had $36.3 million In reserves of fund balance. Of the fund balance 
reserved, $2.9 million was reserved for encumbrances, $7.3 million were collections of ad valorem taxes 
reserved for payment of long-term debt; $25.7 million was reserved for Instructional enhancement; $.1 
million was reserved for Inventory on hand at the year end and $.2 million was reserved for prepaid Items. 

Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as It attempts to deal with unexpected 
changes in revenues and expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was actually adopted after 
the end of the year which Is not prohibited by state law. A schedule showing the School Board's original 
and final budget amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received Is provided later in this 
annual report at Exhibit 1-1. 

There were revisions made to the 2008-2009 General Fund original budget. Budgeted revenues 
were increased $12.2 million due largely to an increase in of $5.2 million In other state sources. 
Also, there was an Increase of $.6 million to ad valorem taxes, an Increase of $2.1 million to MFP, 
and an increase of $3.1 million to transfers from other funds. Budgeted expenditures were 
increased by $12.9 million due largely to an Increase of increases to regular programs of $4.8 
million. Also, there was an Increase of $1.4 million to special programs, and an Increase to plant 
services of $2.4 million. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
As for year ended June 30, 2009, the School Board had $131.0 million (net of accumulated depreciation) 
Invested In a broad range of capital assets. Including land, buildings, and furniture and equipment. This 
amount represents a net Increase (including additions, deductions, and depreciation) of $24.4 million, or 
26.4%, from last year. The increase Is due to constmction projects cost during the year. 

Capital Assets 
Net of depreciation 

(In millions) 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings 
Fumiture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Total net capital assets 

Governmental Activities 
As of June 30. 

2009 
$ 2.6 

33 
85 
5.6 
4.8 

$ 131.0 

2008 
$ 2.6 

30.8 
59.5 
6.5 
4.2 

$ 103.6 

More detailed Information about our capital assets Is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

Debt 
At the end of this year, the School Board had $73.3 million outstanding versus $80.8 million last year, a 
decrease of 9.3%. The outstanding debt consisted of; 

Outstanding Debt of June 30, 

Govemmental Activities 
2009 2008 

General Obligation Bonds $67.4 $74.6 
Qualified Zone Academy Bond loan payable 5.0 4.9 
Capital Leases .9 1.3 

S73.3 I g g J 

The School Board maintains a bond rating of A2 from Moody's and an A from Standard & Poor's for its 
general obligation bonds. The state limits the amount of general obligation debt that can be Issued to 35 
percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within the School Board's corporate limits. The 
School Board's net bonded general obligation debt of $60.1 million (total bonded debt of $67.4 million less 
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assets In debt services funds of $7.3 million) Is significantly below the $292.6 million statutory-Imposed 
limit. 

Net general obligation bonded debt. $60.1 
million 

Ratio of net debt to total assessed value ($802.4 million) 7.5% 

Other obligations include compensated absences, other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability, and 
claims and judgments. We present more detailed Information about our long-term liabilities In Note 11 to 
the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

The School Board Is financially strong with a total fund balance In the govemmental funds of $78.9 million. 
The budget for the 2009-2010 year Includes a conservative increase In budgeted revenue and an 
Increase In budgeted expenditures. The increase in budgeted revenues Is primarily due to an increase in 
Minimum Foundation Program funding and continued growth in sales and property taxes. The increase In 
budgeted expenditures Is largely due to salary Increases and Increased employee benefit costs. 
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CONTACTING THE SCHOOL BOARD'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students. Investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the School Board's finances and to show the School Board's 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact Frank Rougeau, Director of Finance and Business Affairs 
Insurance, at Bossier Parish School Board, 316 Sibley Street, Benton, LA 71006, telephone number 
(318)549-5000. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net) 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 
Discount on bonds, net of accumulated amortization 
Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization 
Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 

Capital assets 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Exhaustible capital assets, net of depreciation 

Statement A 

37,215,529 
26.043,927 

9,058,032 
135,087 
221,405 

34,874 
412,262 

981.926 
25,014,113 

365,242 

2,559,312 
33,048,855 
95,438,030 

Total assets 230.528.594 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Unearned revenue 
Premium on bonds, net of amortization 
Interest payable - bonds and certificates of indebtedness 
Long-term liabilities 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

15.740,289 
50.522 
80,090 

997,795 

12,137,943 
76,612,786 

105,619.425 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Debt service 
Instructional enhancement 

Expendable 
Nonexpendable 

Unrestricted 

72.259.438 

7,295,060 

969,174 
24,752,054 
19,633,443 

Total net assets $ 124,909.169 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Governmental activities 

Instruction 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation sen/ices 
Central services 

Food services 
Community service programs 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total govemmental activities 

Progr 

Charges for 
Expenses Services 

$ 66,907,607 $ 
29,441,560 
15,407,812 

8,979,913 
11,309,011 
2,399,453 

12,189,866 
2,122,612 

17,779,100 
10,758,730 
1,234,226 

10,297,175 2,400,667 
78,557 

3,233,534 
192,139,156 2,400,667 

General revenues 
Taxes 

am Revenues 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

S 

Ad valorem taxes levied for general purposes 
Ad valorem taxes levied for debt sen/lce purposes 

1,162,723 
6,694,258 

807.979 

2,184,855 
4,354,818 
1,665,877 

178,290 
212,859 
102,024 
128,656 

9.289 
4,542,118 

5,514 
-

22,049,260 

Ad valorem taxes levied for maintenance and operations 
Ad valorem taxes levied for salaries and benefds 
Sales taxes levied for salaries, benefits, and general purposes 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Minimum Foundation Program 
BEEF {Gaming revenues) 
State revenue sharing 

Interest and investment eamings 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Adjustment 

Net assets - ending 

Statement B 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Assets 

$ (65,744,884) 
(22.747,302) 
(14,599.833) 

(6,795.058) 
(6,954.193) 

(733,576) 
(12,011,576) 

(1,909,753) 
(17,677,076) 
(10,630,074) 

(1,224,937) 
(3,354.390) 

(73,043) 
(3,233,534) 

(167,689,229) 

2,260,520 
9,367,736 
5,150,114 

19,349,221 
43,872,479 

96,057,350 
3,081,814 

576,228 
1.206,179 
5,274,845 

186,196,486 

18,507,257 

108.108.286 

(1.706,374) 

$ 124^909,169 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2009 

Statement C 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Restncted 
Investments 

Receivables 
Interfund receivables 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total assets 

General Fund Sales Tax 
BPSB Unified 
Construction 

Bossier 
Education 
Excellence 
Pemianent 

Other 
Govemmental Total 

$ 20,169,496 
13.237,776 

. 
-

2,620,629 
5,416,160 

-
221,405 

$ 41,665,466 

$ 

_$_ 

3,722.150 

-

. 
-

3.820,570 

-
-
-

7,542,720 

$ 

_$_^ 

12,089,118 
2,960,940 

-

38,680 
1,118 

-
-

15.089,856 
• 

$ 

_?^ 

5,848 

-

391,750 
25,014,113 

365.242 

-
-
-

25,776,953 

$ 

_$ 

1,560,953 
9,845,211 

. 
-

2.295,588 
2,755.872 

135,087 

-

16,592,711 

$ 

J= 

37,547.565 
26,043,927 

391,750 
25,014,113 

9,140.709 
8,173,150 

135,087 
221,405 

106.667,706 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Claims payable 
Interfund payables 
Defen-ed revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances 
Reserved for 

Encumbrances 
Debt service 
Inventory 
Instructional enhancement 
Prepaid items 

Unreserved 
Designated for debt payments 

Unreserved, reported in 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 
Undesignated 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

$ 11,459,869 : 
464,420 

5,296,292 

-

17,220,581 

2,923,843 

-

-
221.405 

1.000,000 

-

20,299,637 

24,444,885 

$ 41,665,466 3 

i 173.614 

-
3.662,770 

-

3,836,384 

-
-

-

-

3,706,336 

3,706,336 

; 7,542,720 

$ 489,338 

-
-
-

489,338 

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
14,600.518 

-

14,600,518 

$ 15,089,856 

$ 55,726 

-
-
-

55,726 

-
-
-

25,721,227 

-

-

-
-

• 

25.721,227 

$ 25,776,953 

$ 2.410,737 

-
3,729,365 

50,521 

6,190,623 

-
7,295,060 

135.087 

-
-

-

2,963,432 
8,509 

-

10,402,088 

$ 16,592,711 

$ 

$ 

14,589,284 
464,420 

12,688,427 
50,521 

27,792,652 

2,923,843 
7.295.060 

135,087 
25,721,227 

221,405 

1,000,000 

6,669.768 
14,609,027 
20,299,637 

78,875.054 

106,667,706 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

Statement D 

Total fund balances - Govemmental Funds $ 78,875,054 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, fumiture and equipment) purchased 
or constructed is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. The 
Statement of Net Assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the 
School Board as a whole. The cost of those capital assets allocated over their 
estimated useful lives {as depreciation expense) to the various programs 
reported as governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. Because 
depredation expense does not affect financial resources, it is not reported in 
govemmental funds. 

Costs of capital assets 254,082,809 
Depreciation expense to date (123,036,612) 

Other assets used in govemmental activities that are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the govemmental funds. 

Bond issuance costs 576,184 
Amortization (163,922) 

Premium on bonds and discount on twnds are other financing sources/uses 
in govemmental funds but are considered an asset/liability in govemment-wide 

statements. 
Discount on bonds 44,838 
Amortization (9,964) 

Premium on bonds (88,990) 
Amortization 8,900 

131,046,197 

412,262 

34.874 

(80,090) 

Net assets of the intemal service fund reported as proprietary fund type in the 
fund financial statement but included as govemmental activities in the 
govemment-wide financial statement. 

Total net assets (2,623,032) 

Long-tenn liabilities applicable to the School Board's governmental activities are not 
due and payable In the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund 
liabilities. All liabilities - both current and long term - are reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets. 

Balances at June 30, 2009 are 
Long-tenn liabilities 

Bonds payable (58,571,498) 
QZAB notes payable (4,731,850) 
Certificate of indebtedness (9,055,000) 
Claims and judgments payable (515,414) 
Capital leases payable (948,839) 
Compensated absences payable (7,935,700) 

Interest payable (997,795) 
(82,756.096) 

NetAssets $ 124,909,169 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER P A R I S H S C H O O L B O A R D 

Benton, Louis iana 

Govemmenta l Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expendi tures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

statement E 

REVENUES 
Local sources 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Interest eamings 
Food services 
aher 

State sources 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

General 

$ 26,759,855 

-
256.898 

-
2.183.530 

90.699,209 
7,235,629 
1,886,913 

129.022,034 

Sales Tax 

$ 
43,872,479 

-

. 
-
-

43,872,479 

BPSB Unified 
Constmction 

$ 
-

345,404 

-
20.000 

. 
-
-

365,404 

Bossier 
Education 
Excellenco 
Pemianent 

$ 
-

357,716 

-
3,081,814 

, 
-
-

3,439,530 

Other 
Govemmental 

$ 9,367.736 

-
111,778 

2,400.667 
1,977,943 

2,392,720 
1,458,061 

16,031,969 

33,740,874 

Total 

$ 36.127.591 
43.872.479 

1,071,796 
2.400,667 
7.263,287 

93,091.929 
8,693.690 

17,918,882 

210.440.321 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Regular progran^ 
Speaal programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instnjctional staff support 
General administration 
5ctK»l administration 
Business administration 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Food services 
Community service programs 

Capita] outlay 
Debt service 

Bond issuar>ce costs 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Defidency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

Adjustment 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

75,232,690 
22,232,045 
6,852,975 

7,763.954 
6,912,512 
1.588.439 

11.697.565 
1,978.827 

17.882.943 
11,884,758 
1.208,489 

3,000 

540,197 
479,885 

351.923 88,982 

27,507.773 

52,398 

457.682 

6.500 

783,506 
3,660,390 
1.818,583 

1,137,807 
3,366,451 
1,162,242 

-
144,884 
46,106 
34.406 
6.164 

10,062.910 

-
115,248 

. 
7,240,000 
2,749,647 

76,016.196 
25,892.435 

8,671.558 

8,901,761 
10,278.963 
3,191,586 

12.155.247 
2,123,711 

17,929.049 
11,919,164 
1,214,653 

10,062.910 
6,500 

27.626.021 

52.398 
7.780,197 
3,229,532 

166,258,279 

(37,236,245) 

41,864.492 
(479,978) 

41,384,514 

4,148.269 

20,103,987 

192.629 

351,923 

43,520,556 

(43,163,475) 

(43,163.475) 

357,081 

3,349,255 

. 

27,649,153 

(27.283,749) 

(27,283,749) 

41,884.267 

, 

$ 24,444,885 $ 3.706,336 $ 14,600,518 ! 

464.182 

2,975,348 

-

. 

2,975,348 

22,745,879 

-

i 25.721,227 

32,328,344 

1,412.530 

13,808,983 
(12,110,000) 

1,698,983 

3,111,513 

7,290.576 

. 

$ 10,402,089 

227.051,881 

(16.611,560) 

55.673,475 
(55,753,453) 

(79.978) 

(16,691,538) 

95.373,984 

192,629 

$ 78.875.055 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
June 30, 2009 

Statement F 

Total net change in fund balances - govemmental funds 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in govemmental funds as expenditures. However, In 
the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeds depreciation in the period. 

Depreciation expense 
Capital outlays 
Capital asset disposals, net 

Net cost of capital assets 

(16,691,538) 

(6,217,761) 
33,697.765 

(20.917) 
27,459,087 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources of governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of the long-term debt consumes the 
current financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net assets. 

Repayment of bond principal 
Payment of capital lease 
Receipt of bond proceeds 
Reclass of legal liability to short tenm 

Governmental funds report the effects of debt issuance costs and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Bond issuance costs, net of amortization 
Premium on bonds, net of amortization 
Discount on bonds, net of amortization 

In the Statement of Activities, certain expenses-compensated absences (vacations 
and sick leave) - are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In 
govemmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the 
amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). This 
year, vacation and sick time eamed ($3,992,369) was more than the amounts used 
$3,868,294 by $124,075 

All revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets (deficits) of the intemal 

service fund are reported as proprietary fund type in the fund financial statement but 
included as govemmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statement. 

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount 
reported in the govemmental funds because interest is recognized as an 
expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current 
financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, interest expense is 
recognized as the interest accmes, regardless of when it is due. 

Change in net assets of govemmental activities. 

12,531.163 
316,225 

(5.119,717) 
10,000 

(46.798) 
4.450 

(4,984) 

(124,075) 

193,784 

(20,340) 

$ 18,507,257 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE 
Statement of Net Assets (Deficit) 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Statement G 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Interfund receivable 

258,144 
282.563 

4.515,277 

Total assets 5,055,984 

LIABILITIES 
Cun-ent liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Claims payable 

Noncurrent liabilities 
OPEB liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

$ 1,151,007 
3.103.668 
4,254.675 

3,424.341 

7,679.016 

(2.623,032) 

$ (2.623.032) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Assets (Deficit) 

June 30, 2009 

Statement H 

OPERATING REVENUE 

Premiums 

Total operating revenue 

32,227,924 

32,227.924 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Claims 

Total operating expenses 

Operating revenue 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING 

Adjustment 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - ENDING 

32,034,140 

32.034.140 

193.784 

(1,711,345) 

(1.105.471) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Statement 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Premiums 

Claims paid 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating revenue 
Prior period adjustment 

Adjustments to reconcile operating revenue to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable 
Increase (decrease) in claims payable 
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability 

Net cash provided for operating activities 

$ 30,572,625 
(30,362.391) 

210.234 

47.910 

258.144 

193,784 
(1,105.471) 

195.562 
(1.850.861) 
1,239.457 
1.537.763 

210.234 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Benton, Louisiana 

FIDUCIARY FUND 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

June 30, 2009 

Statement J 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits due to others 

Total Liabilities 

$ 2.400.097 

2,400.097 

2.400.097 

$ 2.400.097 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The acconnpanying financial 
statements ofthe Bossier Parish School Board ("School Board") have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
govemmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY The Bossier Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute 
LSA-R.S. 17:51 to provide public education for the children within Bossier Parish. The School Board is 
authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own govemment consistent with 
the laws of the State of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and 
Secondary Education. The School Board is comprised of twelve members who are elected from twelve 
districts for terms of four years. 

The School Board operates thirty-seven schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approxinriately 
19,792 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special 
education and/or adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and 
school food services for the students. 

B. FUNDS The accounts ofthe School Board are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund 
is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting 
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating 
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is 
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 

The funds of the School Board are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary. 

Govemmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for the School Board's general 
govemment activities, including the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, 
the acquisition or construction of capital assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. The School 
Board reports the following major governmental funds: 

General fund - the primary operating fund ofthe School Board. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the School Board, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 

Sales tax fund - accounts for the collection of sales tax in Bossier Parish. The monies are then 
transfen-ed to the appropriate fund for expenditures. 

BPSB Unified Construction - accounts for capital outlay for construction of new school facilities and 
other major improvements. 

Bossier Education Excellence Permanent - accounts for gaming revenue restricted to special 
purposes. 

Proprietary Funds Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, 
where the determination of net income Is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. 
Proprietary funds differ from governmental funds in that their focus is on measurement, which, together 
with the maintenance of equity is an important financial indicator. The School Board reports the following 
proprietary fund: 

Internal service fund - accounts for operations that provide services to other departments or 
agencies ofthe govemment, or to other govemments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The employee 
health insurance program is accounted for in the intemal service fund. 

Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the govemment in a trustee capacity or as 
an agent on behalf of outside parties, including other govemments. 

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of operations or 
have a measurement focus. These funds are used to account for assets that the government holds for 
others in an agency capacity. These agency funds are as follows: 

School activities fund - accounts for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the individual 
schools and school organizations. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities displays information about the reporting govemment as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not 
included in the GWFS. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and 
Liabilities at the fund financial statement level. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, 
and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange 
takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from nonexchange 
transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33 "Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions." 

Internal Activities The employees' health insurance intemal service fund provides services to the 
govemmental funds. Accordingly, the employees' health insurance fund activity was rolled up into the 
govemmental activities. Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Govemments," as much as possible, the 
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Bossier Parish Schoo l Board 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 

intemal activities have been eliminated in order to avoid the "grossing-up" effect of a straight inclusion. 
Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 

Proqram revenues Program revenues include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions; program revenues reduce the cost ofthe function to 
be financed from the School Board's general revenues. Charges for services are primarily derived from 
cafeteria sales. Operating grants and contributions consist ofthe many educational grants received from 
the federal and state government. 

Allocation of indirect expenses The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the 
Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are cleariy identifiable with a function. 
Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each 
function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately 
in the Statement of Activities. Other indirect expenses are not allocated. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Governmental Funds The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is detemiined 
by its measurement focus. Govemmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and 
available"). 

"Measurable" means the amount ofthe transaction can be detennined and "available" means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe curent period. The govemment 
considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured principal and interest on general 
long-term debt which is recognized when due. Compensated absences and claims and judgments are 
reported in a governmental fund only if the claims are due and payable. With this measurement focus, 
only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating 
statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The govemmental 
funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures: 

Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met and the 
resources are available. 

Sales taxes are recognized when the underlying exchange takes place and the resources are 
available. 

Entitlements and shared revenues (which include state equalization and state revenue sharing) 
are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or eariier if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 
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Other receipts become measurable and available when cash is received by the School Board and 
are recognized as revenue at that time. 

Expenditures 

Salaries are recorded as paid. Unpaid salaries for nine-month employees who are paid over 
twelve months are accrued at June 30. Substantially all other expenditures are recognized when 
the related fund liability has been incurred. 

Other financing sources (uses)Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or 
any other types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of capital assets, debt extinguishments, 
long-term debt proceeds, et cetera) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These 
other financing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Proprietary Fund Proprietary fund is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement 
focus and use the accmal basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all 
assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the balance sheet. 

Operating revenues and expenses Proprietary fund distinguish operating revenues and expenses 
from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 
in connection with the fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Fiduciary fund The agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have 
a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing 
demand deposits and time deposit accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and 
those investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the School Board may 
deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks 
organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 

E. INVESTMENTS Investments are limited by R.S. 33:2955 and the School Board's investment policy. If 
the original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the 
original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. 

The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are permitted per GASB 
Statement No. 31: 

1. Investments in nonparticiDatina interest-earning contracts, such as nonnegotiable certificates of 
deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reported using a cost-based 
measure. 

2. The School Board reports at amortized cost money market investments and participatinQ interest-
earning investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or 
less. 
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Definitions: 

Interest-earning investment contracts include time deposits with financial institutions (such as 
certificates of deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts. 

Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U. S. 
Treasury obligations. 

F. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES During the course of operations, numerous 
transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables 
and payables are classified as interfund receivables/payables on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund 
loans are also classified as interfund receivables/payables. 

G. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS Inventories ofthe govemmental fund type are accounted for 
using the consumption method where expenditures are recognized as inventory is used. 

Inventory ofthe school food service special revenue fund consists of food purchased by the School Board 
and commodities granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana 
Department of Agriculture and Forestry. Unused commodities at June 30 are reported as deferred 
revenue. All purchased inventory items are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and commodities are 
assigned values based on information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

H. CAPITAL ASSETS Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives (excluding salvage value). The capitalization threshold Is $1,000. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service 
demands. Straight line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 10-50 years 
Fumiture and equipment 5 -20 years 
Transportation equipment 8 years 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Interest during construction is not capitalized on 
capital assets. 

I. DEFERRED REVENUES Defen"ed revenues arise when resources are received by the School Board 
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of 
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the 
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and the revenue is recognized. 

J. COMPENSATED ABSENCES All School Board employees eam from 10 to 13 days of sick leave 
each year that can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, unused accumulated 
sick leave of up to 25 days is paid to the employee or to the employee's estate at the employee's current 
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rate of pay. Under the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System and the Louisiana School Employees' 
Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service. 

All 12-month employees eam from 10 to 20 days of vacation leave each year. Upon termination, 
employees may be paid for all unused vacation eamed through June 30,2002, and up to forty-five days of 
unused vacation leave eamed subsequent to June 30,2002. Nine-month employees eam two woric days 
of personal leave per academic year which is noncumulative. 

The School Board's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follow: 

A liability for sick leave is accrued using one ofthe following termination approaches: 

A. An accmal for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the 
benefits will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or 
other contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals. 

B. Alternatively, a govemmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability based on the 
sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently are 
eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to 
become eligible in the future to receive such payments. The School Board uses this approach 
to accrue the liability for sick leave. 

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as a liability 
as the benefits are eamed by the employees if both of the following conditions are met: 

A. The employee's right to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered. 

B. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the benefits through paid 
time off or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement. 

K. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS For the govemment-wide statement of net assets, net assets are 
reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either: 

Extemally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other govemments; 

Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use. it is the govemment's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Restrictions reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

L. FUND EQUITY OF FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Reserves represent those portions of fund 
equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designations of 
fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

M. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expendi­
tures initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the 
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reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund 
transfers are reported as transfers. 

N. SALES TAXES On April 15,1969, the voters of Bossier Parish approved a one percent sales and use 
tax to be used to supplement salaries and benefits of teachers and other School Board employees for the 
operation of public schools in Bossier Parish. 

On September 16,1978, the voters of Bossier Parish approved a one-half of one percent sales tax. This 
is to be used for the retirement ofthe School Board's sales tax bonds, the maintenance and upkeep ofthe 
school system's air conditioners and any other lawful purpose ofthe school system. 

On September 18, 2004, the voters of Bossier Parish approved a one-fourth of one percent sales tax. 
This is to be used for salaries, benefits, and the maintenance and upkeep of school buildings. 

O. BUDGETS 

General Budget Practices The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary 
data reflected in the financial statements: 

State statute requires budgets be adopted for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds. 

Each year prior to September 15, the Superintendent submits to the Board proposed annual budgets 
for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Public hearings are conducted, prior to the Board's 
approval, to obtain taxpayer comments. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) lapse at year-end. 

Formal budget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a management control device. 
All budgets are controlled at the function level. Budget amounts included in the accompanying financial 
statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. These revisions were 
considered significant by the Board. All budget revisions are approved by the Board. 

Budget Basis of Accounting All governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAP). 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board. Legally, the Board must adopt 
a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund balance 
must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the 
Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less 
than budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to 
exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The School Board approves budgets at the 
function level and management can transfer amounts between line items within a function. 

P. USE OF ESTIMATES The preparation of financial statements in confomiity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
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and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Q. ELIMINATION AND RECLASSIFICATIONS In the process of aggregating data for the statement of 
net assets and the statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in 
the funds were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize 
the "grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column. 

NOTE 2 - LEVIED TAXES The School Board levies taxes on real and business personal property 
located within Bossier Parish's boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property 
values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax 
Commission. 

The Bossier Parish Sheriffs Office bills and collects property taxes for the School Board. Collections are 
remitted to the School Board monthly. 

Propertv Tax Calendar 

Levy date January 1, 2008 
Millage rates adopted August 7, 2008 
Tax bills mailed November, 2008 
Due date December 31, 2008 
Collections occur December 2008- February 2009 
Lien date January 1, 2009 
Tax sale date, 2008 delinquent property May, 2009 

Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform basis at the 
following ratios of assessed value to fair market value: 

10% land 15% machinery 
10% residential improvements 15% commercial improvements 
15% industrial improvements 25% public service properties, excluding land 

A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every four years. The last 
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 2004. Total assessed value was $901,646,110 in 
calendar year 2008. Louisiana state law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed value of a taxpayer's 
primary residence from parish property taxes. This homestead exemption was $173,853,222 ofthe 
assessed value in calendar year 2008. 

State law requires the sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessment is 
made. Property taxes become delinquent January 1 ofthe following year. If taxes are not paid by the due 
date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given to 
the delinquent taxpayers, the sheriff is required by the Constitution ofthe State of Louisiana to sell the 
least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed. 

The tax roll is prepared by the tax assessor and approved by the State Tax Commission in November of 
each year. The amount of 2008 property taxes to be collected occurs in December 2008 and January and 
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Febmary 2009. All property taxes are recorded in the general and debt service funds. The School Board 
considers the levy date (January 1,2008) as the date an enforceable legal claim occurs for 2008 property 
taxes. Property tax revenue is recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied (budgeted). 
Accordingly, the 2008 property taxes are budgeted in the 2008-2009 fiscal year ofthe School Board. 

Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past experience which will not be collected in the 
subsequent year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll. Historically, virtually all 
ad valorem taxes receivable were collected since they are secured by property. Therefore, there is no 
allowance for uncollectible taxes. 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied (tax rate per $1,000 Assessed Value) ad valorem 
taxes: 

Parish-wide Taxes 

Constitutional 
Special maintenance and operations 
Special salaries and benefits 
Special salaries and benefits 
Bond and interest 
Bond and interest 

Authorized 
Millaqe 

4.22 
9.61 
9.61 

26.50 
Variable 
Variable 

Levied 
Millaqe 

3.63 
8.27 
8.27 

22.81 
2.75 

10.80 

Expiration 
Date 

Statutory 
2013 
2013 
2015 
2017 
2025 

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
investments: 

At June 30, 2009, the School Board had the following 

Investment type 

U. S. Securities 

U. S. Securities 

U. S. Securities 

Total 

Maturities 

Less than 90 days classified as cash 

Less than 1 year 

Greater than 1 year 

Fair Value 

$ 11,999,253 

38,191.771 

3.016.270 

$ 53,207.294 

Interest Rate Risk: The School Board's policy does not address interest rate risk. 

Credit Risk: The School Board invests in certificate of deposit and U. S. Treasury obligations which do 
not have credit ratings. The Treasury Bills are in the School Board's name. 

Custodial Credit Risk-lnvestnr>ents: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counter party, the School Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits: At year end, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was 
$38,448,289 (Statement A -Cash and cash equivalents of $25,216,266, $9,850,000 classified as 
investments, restricted cash of $981,926, and Statement J - $2,400,097) and the bank balance was 
$39,245,319. Ofthe bank balance. $1,481,697 was covered by federal depository insurance or by 
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collateral held by the School Board's agent in the School Board's name. The remaining $37,763,622 of 
the bank balance was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 
department or agent but not in the School Board's name. Even though the pledged securities are 
considered uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3, Louisiana Revised, Statue 
39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell pledged securities 
within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds 
upon demand. The School Board's cash management policy does not address custodial credit risk. 

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES The receivables at June 30. 2009, are as follows: 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem 
Sates tax 

Intergovemmenlal -
grants: 

Federal 
State 

Other 
Total 

$ 

$ 

General 

5,405 
-

283,603 
1,880,904 

450,717 
2,620,629 

$ 

$ 

Sales Tax 

-
3,820,570 

-
-
-

3,820,570 

Bossier 
Unified 

Construction 

$ 

$ 

-
-

-
-

38,680 
38,680 

Bossier 
Education 
Excellence 
Permanent 

$ 
-

-
-

365,242 
$ 365,242 

Other 
Govemmental 

$ 

$ 

-
-

2,197,140 
19,801 
78,647 

2,295,588 

Internal 
Service 

$ 
-

-
-

282,563 
S 282,563 

$ 

$ 

Total 

5,405 
3,820,570 

2,480,743 
1,900,705 
1,215,849 
9,423,272 

The School Board expects to collect these balances in full; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts 
was established. 
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS Capital assets balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, 
are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Nondepreciable capital assets 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total Nondepreciable capital assets 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 

Buildings 

Furniture and equipment 

Transportation equipment 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings 

Fumiture and equipment 

Transportation equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Depreciable capital assets, net 

Govemmental Activities: 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 
June 30,2008 

$ 2,559,312 

30,792,100 

33,351,412 

142,632,253 

33,466,010 

11,538,441 

187,636,704 

83,088,538 

26,%9,357 

7,343,111 

117,401,006 

70,235,698 

$ 103,587,110 

Additions 

$ 

25,574,947 

25,574,947 

27,651,939 

2,731.205 

1,057,866 

31,441,010 

2,166,810 

3,576,802 

474,149 

6,217,761 

25,223,249 

$ 50,798,196 

Retirements 

$ 

23,318,192 

23,318,192 

-

489,817 

113,255 

603,072 

-

468,900 

113,255 

582,155 

20,917 

$ 23,339,109 

Balance 
June 30, 2009 

$ 2,559,312 

33,048,855 

35,608,167 

170,284,192 

35,707398 

12,483,052 

218,474,642 

85,255,348 

30,077,259 

7,704,005 

123,036,612 

95,438,030 

$ 131,046,197 

Current year additions differ from capital outlay on Statement E by the amount of $23,120,531 which was 
reclassified from construction in progress and to buildings for completed constmction projects as of June 
30, 2009. 
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$ 2,176,214 

932,664 

497,421 

310,888 

373,066 

62,178 

373,066 

62,178 

683,954 

373,066 

62,178 

310,888 

$ 6,217,761 
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Depreciation expense was charged to govemmental activities as follows: 

Regular programs 
Special programs 

Other instructional programs 
Student Services 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School Administration 
Business services 

Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 
Food services 

Total depreciation ê qiense 

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Plan description Substantially all School Board employees participate in either the Teachers' 
Retirement System or the School Employees' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer public employee retirement systems (PERS). Benefit provisions are ulfimately 
approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. 

Participation in the Teachers' Retirement System is divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan 
and the Teachers' Plan A. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and 
lunchroom workers are members ofthe Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System (TRS); other employees, 
such as custodial personnel and bus drivers, are members of the Louisiana School Employees' 
Retirement System (LSERS). Generally, all full-time employees are eligible to participate in the system. 

With respect to the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, normal refirement is at age sixty with ten 
years of service, or at any age with twenty years of service. The formula for annual maximum retirement 
benefits is generally two percent (with less than twenty-five years of service) or 2.5 percent (with twenty-
five or more years of service) times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-
six highest successive months (plus $300 applicable to persons becoming members prior to July 1,1986). 

Under the Teachers' Retirement System Plan A, normal retirement is generally at any age with 30 or more 
years of creditable service, at age fifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age 
sixty with at least ten years of creditatjie service. The retirement benefit formula is generally three percent 
times the years of creditable service times the average salary ofthe thirty-six highest successive months 
plus $24 per year of service. 

Employees participating in the School Employees' Refirement System are eligible for normal retirement 
after thirty years of service, or after twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or after ten years of 
service at age sixty. The maximum refirement allowance is computed at 2.5 percent fimes the highest 
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thirty-six months of average salary, fimes the years of service plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times 
the years of service. 

Both TRS and LSERS issue annual financial reports. The reports can be obtained by telephoning or 
writing to the following: 

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Louisiana School Employees' Refirement System 
Post Office Box 94123 Post Office Box 44516 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 
(225) 925-6446 (225) 925-6484 

Funding Policy Each system is administered and controlled at the state level by a separate board of 
trustees, with contribution rates approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Benefits ofthe 
systems are funded by employee and employer contributions. Benefits granted by the retirement systems 
are guaranteed by the state of Louisiana under provisions ofthe Louisiana Constitufion of 1974. 

In addition, the employer does not remit to the Teachers' Refirement System, Regular Plan or Plan A, the 
employer's contribufion for the professional improvement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PIP 
contribufion is made directly to the Refirement System by the state of Louisiana. 

Contribufion rates (as a percentage of covered salaries) for active plan members as established by the 
Louisiana Legislature for the year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows: 

Employee Employer 
Louisiana Teachers' Refirement System: 
Regular 8.00% 16.6% 
Plan A 9.10% 16.6% 
Louisiana School Employees' Refirement System 7.50% 18.1% 

Total covered payroll ofthe School Board for TRS - Regular Plan, TRS - Plan A, and LSERS for the year 
ended June 30, 2009, amounted to $96,190,469, $69,257 and $11,574,995, respectively. Employer 
contribufions for the year ended June 30, 2009, and each of the two preceding years are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 
June 30, 2007 
June 30, 2008 
June 30, 2009 

TRSL 
$11,961,023 

14,070,756 
14,152.147 

LSERS 
$1,836,170 

1.861,482 
2.057,062 

Employer contributions totaled 100% of annual actuarially required contribufions. 
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NOTE 7 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS Effective with the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2008, the School Board implemented Govemment Accounfing Standards Board Statement Number 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions 
(GASB 45). 

Plan description - In accordance with state statutes, the School Board provides certain continuing health 
care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substanfially all of the School Board's 
employees become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the 
School Board. These benefits for refirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided through 
an insurance program, whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employee and by the School 
Board. The School Board is self-insured for health care costs. 

Funding policy - The contribufion requirements of plan members and the School Board are established 
and may be amended by LRS 42:801-883. Employees do not contribute to their post employment 
benefits cost until they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The refirees' contribute to the 
cost of retiree healthcare is based on a rate schedule. Contribution per retiree varies depending on the 
number of covered parties. The following is a schedule of amounts paid by retiree and employer for 
benefits; 

Retiree Without Medicare hired orior to 1987 

Retiree Only 

Retiree & Spouse 
Retiree & Child 
Retiree & Children 
Retiree & Family 

Retiree Without Medicare hired after 1987 

Retiree Only 

Retiree & Spouse 

Retiree & Child 

Retiree & Children 

Retiree & Family 

Retiree With Medicare 

Retiree Only 

Retiree & Spouse/1 Medicare 

Retiree & Spouse/2 Medicare 
Retiree & Child 

Retiree & Children 

Retiree & Family 

Life Insurance 

Retiree Only 

Emplovee 

$ 45.40 

172.95 
174.53 
182.53 
226.68 

$ 50.24 

186.44 

194.28 

202.68 

252.00 

$ 6.00 

139.88 

139.88 
141.45 

149.45 

196.36 

$ 2.70 

Employer 

$ 387.86 

547.69 
552.98 
549.80 
835.75 

$ 387.86 

547.69 

552.98 

549.80 

835.75 

$ 271.17 

538.16 

398.61 
452.68 

449.51 

764.73 

, 

$ 4.63 
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The plan is currently financed on a "pay as you go" basis, with the School Board contribufing 
$8,922,969 for 1,219 refirees. 

Annual other post employment benefit cost and liability - The School Board's annual required 
contribufion (ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45, which is being 
implemented for the year ended June 30,2008. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, would cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilifies (UAL) 
over a period of thirty years. A level dollar, open amortizafion period of 30 years (the maximum 
amortization period allowed by GASB 45) was used for post employment benefits. The total ARC for 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is $10,460,732, as set forth below: 

Normal cost $ 2,292,105 
30-year UAL amortization amount 8,168,627 

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 10,460,732 

The following table presents the School Board's OPEB obligafion for fiscal year ended June 30, 2009: 

Beginning Net OPEB obligation as of July 1, $ 
2008 1,886,578 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 10,146,554 
Interest on prior year Net OPEB obligation 314,178 
Adjustment to ARC -__ 

Annual OPEB Cost 12,347,310 
8,922.969 

Less: current year retiree premiums 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligafion 3,424,341 
$ 

Ending net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2009 3,424,341 

Utilizing the "pay-as-you-go" basis, the School Board contributed 72% of the annual post employment 
benefits cost during fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. 

Funding status and funding progress - Since the plan is not funded, the School Board's enfire actuarial 
accrued liability of $141,252,011 was unfunded. 

The funding status of the plan, as determined by an actuary as of July 1, 2007, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 141,252.011 
Actuarial value of plan assets - ^ 

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 141,252.011 
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Funded rafio (actuarial accnjed liability/AAL) 

Covered payroll 

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

0% 

$ 107.834.721 

130.99% 

Actuarial methods and assumptions - Actuarial valuafions of an ongoing plan involves esfimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumpfions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare costs trends. 

Amounts determined regarding the funded status ofthe plan and the annual required contributions ofthe 
employer are subject to confinual revision as actual results are compared with past expectafions and new 
esfimates are made about the future. 

Projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuafion and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term 
perspective ofthe calculafions. 

In the July 1, 2007 Bossier Parish School Board actuarial valuafion, the unit credit actuarial cost method 
was used. The actuarial assumpfion included a 4% rate of retum on investments. The expected rate on 
increase in healthcare costs was based on Pre-Medicare and Medicare eligible graduated down to an 
ulfimate annual rate of 5.0%. The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table was used in making 
actuarial assumptions in regards to mortality rates. This is the mortality table which the Intemal Revenue 
Service (IRS) requires to be used in detennining the value of accrued benefits in defined pension plans. 
An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as described by the School Board's 
administrative staff was used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, produced an 
annual turnover of approximately 14%. 

The remaining amortizafion period at June 30. 2009, for other post employment benefits (OPEB) was 
twenty-eight years. 

NOTE 8 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES The payables at June 30, 2009, are as 
follows: 

Salaries 

Accounts 

Total 

General 
$ 5,988.818 

5,471.051 

$ 11,459,869 

BPSB Unified 
Sales Tax Constmction 

$ - $ 75.089 

173,614 414.250 

$ 173,614 $ 489.339 

Bossier 
Education 
Excellence Other 
Penmanent Govemmental 
$ - $ 1,873.922 

55.724 536,814 

$ 55,724 $ 2.410,736 

Intemal 
Service 

$ 

1,151.007 

$1,151,007 

$ 

$ 

Total 
7,937,829 

7,802,460 

15.740,289 
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NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES At June 30, 2009, employees ofthe School Board have 
accumulated and vested $7,935,700 of employee leave benefits, which includes $113,423 of employee-
related benefits. These benefits were computed in accordance with GASB Codificafion Section C60. 

NOTE 10 - AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS A summary of changes in agency fund deposits 
due others follows: 

Balance at Balance 
Beginning At End 
Of Year Additions Deductions Of Year 

School activities $ 2^434.618 $ 7,869,838 $ 7,904.359 $ 2.400,097 

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

General Long-Term Liabilities The following is a summary ofthe long-term obligafion transactions for 
the year ended June 30, 2009: 

Govemmentai Activities 
Bonds payable 
QZAB loans payable 
Note payable 
OPEB obligation 
Claims and judgments payable 
Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences 

Govemmental Activities 
Long-temi debt 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 64,590,000 
5,179,794 

10,000,000 
1,886,578 
3,997,442 
1,265,064 
7,811,625 

$ 94,730,503 

Additions 

$ 5,119,717 
-
-

1,537,763 
28,490,240 

-
3,992,369 

$ 39,140,089 

Deductions 

$ 12307,191 
223,972 

-
-

28,404,182 
316,225 

3,868,294 

$45,119,864 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 57,402,526 
4,955,822 

10,000,000 
3,424,341 
4,083,500 

948,839 
7,935,700 

$ 88,750,728 

Amounts due 
Within 

One Year 

$ 3,387,191 
223,972 
945,000 

-
3,568,088 

145,398 
3,868,294 

$ 12,137,943 

The compensated absences liability attributable to the govemmental activities will be liquidated 100% by 
the General Fund. 

The individual issues are as follows: 

Date 
Parish-wide 2008 
Parish-wide 2008 
2008 Cert of 
Indebtedness 
Parish-wide 2007 
Parish-wide 2006 
Parish-wide 2005 
QZAB 2006 
QZAB 2001 

Original 
Amount 

% 10,000,000 
5.119,717 

10,000.000 
20,000,000 
20,000,000 
22,460,000 
3,500,000 
3,000,000 

Interest Rates 
3.50-4.75% 
3.00-5.00% 

3 75-4.50% 
3.60-5.00% 
3.66-5.25% 
3.00-5.00% 

4.00% 
Noninterest 

Final 
Payment Due 

2028 
2017 

2018 
2027 
2026 
2025 
2016 
2015 

Interest to 
Maturity 

$ 2,523,120 
819,022 

2,168,881 
7,043,613 
6,906,372 
6,349,612 

112,000 
-

$ 25,922,620 

Deferred 
Amount 

$ 
109,717 

-
-
-
-
-
-

$109,717 

Principal 
Outstanding 
$ 6,000,000 

4,672,526 

10,000,000 
14,500,000 
14,935,000 
17,295,000 
3,500,000 
1,455,822 

$ 72358,348 

Amount Due 
Within One 

Year 
$ 1.000,000 

477,191 

945,000 
510,000 
570,000 
830,000 

-
223,972 

$ 4,556,163 
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The parish wide bonds and certificate of indebtedness that were issued in 1997, 2005, 2006, 2007, and 
2008 were issued to fund construction, renovation, repair, and improvement of public school buildings. 
The principal and interest is paid by the Debt Service Fund except for one $10,000,000 parish-wide bond 
issue which is paid from the General Fund. 

The School Board entered into two loan agreements under the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds Program 
(QZAB) which were issued in 2001 and 2006 to fund improvements at various schools within the parish. 
The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provided this financial tool whereby interest on QZABs is paid by the 
federal govemment in the form of an annual tax credit to the financial institutions that hold QZABs. The 
bonds are secured solely by the payments made by the School Board under the loan agreements. The 
School Board makes payments from the General Fund 

The 2001 QZAB loan is an interest free loan requiring quarterly principal payments of $55,993 with the 
final payment due in 2015. For the year ended June 30,2009, the School Board made principal payments 
of $223,972. 

In 2006, the School Board received $3,500,000 QZAB taxable certificates of indebtedness, an allocation 
from the State of Louisiana Department of Education. According to the trust agreement, the School Board 
is required to make annual deposits into a debt service fund (sinking fund) held by the Bank of New York 
(the Tmstee) of $292,120, which includes a $14,000 supplemental coupon payment (interest). The 
Trustee is responsible for paying off the $3,500,000 in December 2016 from the sinking fund. 

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad 
valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish. At June 30, 2009, the School Board has 
accumulated $7,295,060 in the debt service funds for future debt requirements. 

The amount of debt related to acquiring capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2009, for the 
School Board was $72,940,141. 

Debt Service Requirements Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year ending June 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2028 

30, 
Interest 

Payments 

$ 2,880.519 
2,675,603 
2.518,015 
2,360,921 
2.194,199 
8.203,504 
4.311,138 

778,721 

Principal 
Payments 

$ 4.556.163 
3.906,163 
4.126.163 
4,321,163 
4,526,163 

24,73^533 
17,370.000 
8,820,000 

Total 

$ 7,436,682 
6,581,766 
6,644,178 
6,682.084 
6.720.362 

32,936,037 
21.681,138 
9.598,721 

$ 25,922,620 $ 72,358,348 $ 98,280.968 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring 
long-term bonded debt in excess of 35 percent of the assessed value of taxable property. At June 30, 
2009, the statutory limit is $315,576,139 and outstanding net bonded debt totals $50,107,466. 
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Current Refunding On March 1,2009, the School Board issued $5,010,000 of General Obligation School 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, (interest rate of 3.0% to 5.0%) to advance refund $5,055,000 of 
outstanding General Obligation School Bonds, Series 1997 (interest rate 4.50% to 10.0%). The bonds 
were issued at a premium of $181,259 and, after paying issuance costs of $71,541, the net proceeds 
were $5,119,917. The deferred amount on the bond refunding in the amount of $109,717 is included in 
the amount ofthe bond payable and is being amortized over nine (9) years as a component of interest 
expense. 

Capital Leases The School Board records items under capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the 
accompanying financial statements. The following is an analysis of capital leases at June 30, 2009: 

Type: Total 
Unisys mainframe/computer equipnnent $1,581,000 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the 
present value ofthe net minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 2009: 

Fiscal vear: 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
Total 
Less amounts representing interest 
Present value 
payments 

of net minimum lease 

Unisys 
Mainframe 

$ 172,042 
344,184 
344,084 
172.035 

1,032,345 
(83,506) 

S 948.839 

DTE 12 - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES (FFS LEVEL ONLY) 

Interfund Receivables/Payables 
Receivable Fund 
General 

Unified Construction 

Other govemmental 

Intemal Service 
Total 

Payable Fund 
Sales Tax Department 
Other governmental 

Other govemmental 

General Fund 
Other govemmental 
Sales Tax Department 

General Fund 

Amount 
$ 2.362,770 

3.053,389 

1,118 

781,015 
674,858 

1,300,000 

4,515.277 
$ 12,688,427 

The purpose of interfund assets/liabilities was to pay health insurance premiums and cover expenses in 
cost reimbursement programs until the reimbursement requisitions are deposited. 
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NOTE 13 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES (FFS LEVEL ONLY) 

Reservations 

Encumbrances Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated amount the School 
Board intends to honor as a commitment regardless ofthe lapse in the appropriation. 

Debt Service This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been reserved in the debt 
service fund for future payment of principal and interest on bonded debt. 

Inventory This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating to inventory on hand which is 
therefore unavailable to be expended for other purposes. 

Instructional Enhancement This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been 
reserved in the Bossier Educational Excellence Fund (permanent fund). 

Prepaid Items Fund balance is reserved for prepaid expenditures which indicates that fund balances 
in that amount is not available for appropriation and expenditures. 

NOTE 14 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009, were as follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
General Fund Sales Tax $ 29,754,492 

Other Govemmental 12,110,000 
Other Govemmental General Fund 200,000 

Sales Tax 13,608.983 
Total $ 55,673.475 

The purpose of the interfund transfers was to pay salaries from the sales tax supplement. 

NOTE 15-RISK MANAGEMENT The School Board maintains a risk management program for workers' 
compensation. During fiscal year 2009 a total of $269,268 was incurred in benefits and administrative 
costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $300,000. Interfund 
premiums are based primarily upon the individual funds payroll and are reported as expenditures in the 
individual funds. 

The School Board maintains a risk management program for employees' health insurance. Premiunns are 
paid into the health insurance intemal service fund by all other funds and are available to pay claims, 
claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. An excess coverage insurance policy covers 
individual claims in excess of $150,000. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the individual 
funds' payroll and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds. The incun-ed but not reported 
claims at year end of $3,103,668 have been accrued based upon the third party administrator's 
calculation using historical claim experience. Claims payable does not include incremental costs. 
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Changes in the claims amount in the current and the previous fiscal years are as follows; 

Year ended June 30, 

Group Health Insurance 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

Worker's Compensation 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

Claims and judgments 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 

Beginning of 

Fiscal Year 
Liability 

$ 2,164,606 
2,712326 
3,015,218 

1,103,690 
1,086,469 

972,224 

10,000 
10,000 
10,000 

Claims and 

Changes in 
Estin\ates 

$ 22,885,898 
26,256,259 
28,129,597 

430,321 
239,828 
269,258 

-
-

176,635 

, Benefit 

Payments 
and Claims 

$ 22,338,178 
25,953,367 
28,041,147 

447,542 
354,073 
363,035 

-
-

85,250 

Ending of 

Fiscal Year 
Liability 

$ 2,712,326 
3,015,218 
3,103,668 

1,086,469 
972,224 
878,447 

10,000 
10,000 

101,385 

The claims and judgments liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated 100% by the 
General Fund. 

In addition, the School Board is at risk for property damage, liability and theft which are covered by 
commercial insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 16 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

Litigation The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Management and legal counsel for the 
School Board believe that the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance would 
not materially affect the School Board's financial position. 

Grant Disallowances The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant 
programs. The programs are subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits 
could lead to requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms 
ofthe grants. School Board management believes that the amount would not be material. 

Tax Arbitrage Rebate Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in 
excess of interest expense prior to the disbursement ofthe proceeds must be rebated to the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS). Management believes there is no tax arbitrage rebate liability at year end. 

Construction Projects The School Board had major construction projects during 2009 for a new school 
and other building improvements. One ofthe construction projects in progress was completed shortly after 
June 30,2009. It had a total budgeted cost of $35,000,000 with $32,482,000 spent as of June 30,2009. 
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NOTE 17-ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES On-behalf payments 
for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying agent) to a third-party 
recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement No. 
24 requires employer governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expenses for these on-
behalf payments. 

The state of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) 
directly to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of 
$54,723. This amount was recognized as state revenue and a corresponding expenditure in the 
applicable fund from which the salary was paid. 

NOTE 18 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 14 
requires disclosure in financial statements of a situation where one entity provides more than 10% ofthe 
audited entity's revenue. The Minimum Foundation funding provided by the state to all public school 
systems in Louisiana is primarily based on October 1 student count. The state provided $96,057,350 to 
the School Board, which represents approximately 46% ofthe School Board's total revenue for the year. 

NOTE 19 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Deficit Fund Balances The following fund has a deficit in the fund balance at June 30, 2009: 

Deficit 
Fund Amount 
Internal Service $ 2.623,032 

The deficit in the Internal Service is due to the recording ofthe OPEB obligation at June 30,2008 and 
2009. 

B. Excess of Actual Expenditures Over Budgeted Expenditures in Individual Funds The 
following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended 
June 30. 2009: 

Unfavorable 
Fund Budget Actual Variance 

Title II $ 1,336,401 $1,391,425 $ 55,024 
Special Education 3,877,404 3,904,020 26,616 
School Foodservice 10,049,246 10,062,910 13,664 

NOTE 20 - CORRECTION OF ERRORS In the financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2009. 
errors arising from prior period financial statements made in accounting for in the government-wide 
financial statements, the general fund, and the internal service fund were identified and corrected in the 
opening balances of net assets or fund balances. 
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For the government-wide financial statement presentation, the en-ors were corrected which had the 
following effect on the beginning balance of net assets: 

Government-
Wide Net 
Assets 

Beginning fund balance, as previously reported $ 108,108,286 
Adjustment to workers' compensation liability - long term 
portion ( 515.413 ) 
Adjustment to accounts payable clearing account 85,390 
Adjustment to payroll clearing account ( 170,881 ) 
Adjustment of hospitalization claims ( 1,105,471 ) 
Beginning fund balance, as connected $ 106.401.911 

For the General Fund in the govemmental fund financial statements the error has been corrected and has 
had the following effect on the beginning balance: 

General Fund 
Net Assets 

Beginning fund balance, as previously reported $ 20.103,987 
Record bond sinking fund for QZAB 278.120 
Adjustment of the cash account 97.256 
Adjustment to payroll clearing account ( 182,747 ) 
Beginning fund balance, as corrected $ 20,296,616 

For the Intemal Service Fund in the proprietary fund financial statements the error has been corrected 
and has had the following effect on the beginning balance: 

Intemal 
Service Fund 
Net Assets 

Beginning fund balance, as previously reported ($ 1,711,345 ) 
Adjustment of hospitalization claims ( 1,105,471 ) 
Beginning fund balance, as corrected ($ 2,816,816 ) 
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NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS The Bossier Parish Sheriffs Office, Federal Bureau of 
Invesfigation, and the Louisiana State Legislative Auditor's Office had an on-going investigafion ofthe 
Maintenance Department ofthe Bossier Parish School Board. The six month investigation led to a 196-
count indictment against the five defendants and Ark-La-Tex Air Repair, Inc., charging conspiracy to 
commit mail fraud, mail fraud, and forfeiture ofthe corporate assets of Air Repair. In September 2009, 
three former School Board employees, along with the owners of Ark-La-Tex Air Repair, Inc.. were 
sentenced by a U.S. District Judge. In addition to fime in prison, each of them were ordered to pay 
restitution of $1,194,300. for defrauding the School Board. 

In July 2009, the School Board applied for federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, or ARRA, 
funds available as no-interest loans. The School Board initially qualified for authority to issue up to $30 
million in Qualified School Construction Bonds out of $131.6 million available to the state as a whole. 
State officials later decided to cap bond issuance at $10 million per requester. The ARRA funds are not 
grants but allow school systems to borow the money interest-free. In September 2009, the School Board 
approved a $10 million bond sale for constnjcfion project that must be completed within the next three 
years. J.P. Morgan Chase Bank in Shreveport purchased the bond. 
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 
JUNE 30, 2009 

(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a/c) 
Actuarial UAAL as a 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage 
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered 

Date Assets (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
7/1/2007 $ - $141,252,011 $141,252,011 0% $114,450.021 123.42% 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds With Legally Adopted Annual Budgets 

GENERAL FUND The general fund accounts for all acfivities ofthe School Board except those that are 
accounted for in other fijnds. 

SALES TAX The sales tax fund accounts for the collection of sales tax in Bossier Parish applicable to the 
School Board. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
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GENERAL FUND 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 1-1 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING 
Resources (inflows) 

Local sources 
Taxes 

Ad valorem 
Interest earnings 
Other 

State sources 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 
Transfers from other funds 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
General government 

Instruction 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Community service programs 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal retirement 
Transfers to other funds 

Total charges to appropriations 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, ENDING 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS 
ACTUAL 

AMOUNTS 
ORIGINAL FINAL (Budgetary Basis) 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 18,378.364 $ 18,378.364 $ 18.378,364 $ 

25.044.653 
650,000 
735,760 

88,565,438 
1,977,870 
2,150.350 
38,708,144 

176,210,579 

25.642,246 
184,045 

1,458.990 

90,699.209 
7,184,114 
2,996.084 

41,864.492 

188,407,544 

26,759.855 
256,898 

2,183,530 

90,699,209 
7,235,629 
2,668,715 

41,864,492 

190,046,692 

1,117,609 
72,853 

724,540 

51,515 
(327.369) 

1,639,148 

62,250,340 
20,848,570 
12,354,703 

7,038,689 
7,012,549 
1,616,540 

12,277,975 
1,705,416 

18,850,539 
11,429,474 
1,323,108 

78,557 
-

67,027.447 
22.222,393 
15.508,161 

7,620,967 
7,256,271 
1.648,198 

11,704.351 
1,714.145 

21.313.479 
11.873.966 
1.196,951 

78,557 
11,257 

75,232.690 
22.238.649 
7,627,821 

7,763,954 
6,912,864 
1,588,439 

11,697,565 
1,978.827 

17,882,943 
11,884,758 
1,208,489 

-
3,000 

(8,205,243) 
(16,256) 

7,880,340 

(142,987) 
343,407 
59,759 
6.786 

(264.682) 
3,430,536 

(10,792) 
(11,538) 
78,557 
8,257 

981,224 

157.767,684 

1.298,153 
221.506 

1,020,082 
221,506 

170,695,802 167.261,587 

278.071 

3,434,215 

$ 18.442,895 $ 17.711,742 $ 22.785,105 $ 5,073,363 

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

SPECIAL REVENUE 
SALES TAX 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 1-2 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 
Resources (inflows) 

Local sources 
Taxes 

Sales tax 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
General government 

Support services 
General administration 

Transfers to other funds 

Total charges to appropriations 

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES. ENDING 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS 
ORIGINAL 

$ 3,777,855 

39,050,000 

42,827,855 

350.000 
38,700,000 

39,050,000 

$ 3,777.855 

$ 

$ 

FINAL 

3,349.255 

43,872,479 

47.221.734 

351,923 
43,163.475 

43,515,398 

3.706.336 

ACTUAL 
AMOUNTS 

(Budgetary Basis) 

$ 3,349.255 

43.872,479 

47,221,734 

351,923 
43,163,475 

43.515.398 

$ 3,706,336 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

$ 

$ 

See notes'to budgetary comparison schedules. 
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Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 
A. BUDGETS 

General Budget Practices The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary 
data reflected in the combined financial statements: 

State statute requires budgets be adopted for the general fund and all special revenue funds. 

Each year prior to September 15, the Superintendent submits to the Board proposed annual budgets for 
the general fund and special revenue funds' budgets. Public hearings are conducted, prior to the Board's 
approval, to obtain taxpayer comments. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

Appropriations (unexpended budget balances) (apse at year-end. 

Formal budget integration (v\/lthin the accounting records) is employed as a management control device. 
All budgets are controlled at the function level. Budget amounts included in the accompanying financial 
statements include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. These revisions were 
considered significant by the Board. All budget revisions are approved by the Board. 

Budget Basis of Accounting All govemmental funds' budgets are generally prepared on the modified 
accmal basis of accounting, a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board. 
Legally, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other financing 
sources including fund balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing 
uses. State statutes require the Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues 
within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or 
expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. The 
School Board approves budgets at the function level and management can transfer amounts between line 
items within a function. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
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Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Note C- Budget to GAAP Reconcilation - Explanantion of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and 
GAAP revenues and expenditures 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource 
but is not a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes 

Federal revenue included for budgetary basis, but included in Special Federal 
Fund for reporting purposes 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources 
but are not revenues for finandal reporting purposes 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$ 190.046,692 

(18.378.364) 

(781.802) 

(41,864,492) 

SALES 
TAX 

$ 47,221,734 

(3,349,255) 

-

. 

$ 129,022,034 $ 43,872.479 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) 'Total charges to appropriations" 

from the Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Federal expenses included for budgetary basis, but included in Special Federal 
Fund for financial reporting purposes 

Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources 
but are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes 

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 

$ 167,261,587 $ 43,515,398 

(781.802) 

(221,506) (43.163,475) 

$ 166.258,279 $ 351,923 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type 

June 30, 2009 
Exhibit 2 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Interfund receivables 
Inventory 

Special 
Revenue 

$ 1.219.758 
2,900,230 
2,278,194 
2,080,873 

135,087 

Debt 
Service 

$ 333,226 
6.944.981 

16.853 
-
-

Capital 
Projects 

$ 7.969 
-

540 
675,000 

-

Total 

$ 1.560,953 
9.845,211 
2,295.587 
2.755,873 

135,087 

Total assets 8.614,142 7.295.060 683,509 16,592.711 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts, salaries and other payable 
Interfund payable 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

2,410,737 
3,054,365 

50,521 

5,515,623 

675.000 

675,000 

2,410,737 
3,729,365 

50.521 

6,190,623 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for debt service 
Reserved for inventory 
Unreserved, reported in 

Special Revenue 
Capital Projects 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

135,087 

2,963,432 

3,098,519 

$ 8,614,142 

7,295,060 

7,295,060 

$ 7,295.060 

8,509 

8.509 

$ 683,509 

7.295,060 
135.087 

2.963.432 
8.509 

10,402,088 

$ 16,592.711 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

Benton, Louisiana 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - By Fund Type 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 3 

REVENUES 
Local sources 
Taxes 

Ad valorem 
Interest eamings 
Food services 
Other 

State sources 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 

Total revenues 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

$ 
35,306 

2,400,667 
1,977,943 

2,392,720 
1,387.736 

16,031,968 

24,226,340 

DEBT SERVICE 

$ 9,367,736 
76,472 

-
-

-
70,325 

-

9,514,533 

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS 

$ -
-
-
-

-
-
-
, 

TOTAL 

$ 9,367,736 
111.778 

2,400,667 
1.977,943 

2,392,720 
1.458,061 

16,031,968 

33.740,873 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Food services 
Capital outlay 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

783.506 
3,660.390 
1,818,583 

1,137.807 
3,366,451 
1,162,242 

144,884 
46.106 
34.406 

6,164 
10,062,910 

115,248 

-

22,338,697 

1,887,643 

1,700,000 

1,700,000 

3,587,643 

(489,124) 

$ 3,098,519 $ 

-

-

7,240,000 
2,749,647 

9,989,647 

(475,114) 

-

(475,114) 

7,770,174 

; 7,295,060 

-

-

-

-

12.108,983 
(12.110,000) 

(1.017) 

(1,017) 

9.526 

S 8,509 

783,506 
3.660,390 
1.818,583 

1.137,807 
3.366,451 
1.162,242 

144,884 
46,106 
34,406 

6,164 
10.062.910 

115.248 

7.240,000 
2,749,647 

32.328,344 

1,412,529 

13,808.983 
(12.110,000) 

1,698,983 

3.111,512 

7,290,576 

$ 10,402.088 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

Non Major Special Revenue Funds 

TITLE I To improve the educational opportunities of educationally deprived children by helping them 
succeed In the regular school program, attain grade level proficiency and Improve achievement in basic 
and more advanced skills. This fund is primarily for provision of compensatory instructional activities to 
educationally deprived children that reside in low-income areas and have been selected on the basis of a 
needs assessment. Services supplement, not supplant, those normally provided by state and local 
educational agencies. 

TITLE IJ This program was designed to improve the skills of teachers and the quality of instruction In 
mathematics and science, also to increase the accessibility of such instnjction to all students. 

TITLE III To ensure that limited English proficient children (LEP) and youth, including immigrant children 
and youth, attain English proficiency and meet the same challenging state academic content and student 
academic achievement standards as all children and youth are expected to meet. 

TITLE IV To establish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention 
coordinated with related community efforts and resources. 

TITLE V To assist state and local educational agencies in the reform of elementary and secondary 
education. 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

STATE GRANTS To provide grants to states to assist them In providing a free appropriate public 
education to all children with disabilities. 

PRESCHOOL To provide grants to states to assist them in providing a free appropriate public education 
to preschool disabled children aged three through five years. 

REGION VII SERVICE CENTER This program was designed to provide wori<shops for teachers and 
administrators. The Teacher Evaluation Program is coordinated through this program. Workshops 
provide points to administrators towards their continuing education. 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE This program was designed to assist through cash grants and food 
donations in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch servic^e for school students and to encourage the 
domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural commodities. 

LOUISIANA EDUCATfONAL EXCELLENCE Louisiana Revised Statute (LRS): 39:98.1-98.5 established 
the Education Excellence Fund (EEF) as a component ofthe Millennium Trust. By legislative mandate, 
the State Department of Education has the responsibility of providing for the appropriations and oversight 
of monies from the Education Excellence Fund with the specific purpose of ensuring that all expenditures 
are used to support "excellence in educational practice." 

SPECIAL FEDERAL FUND This fund accounts for various federal grants. 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

Non Major Special Revenue Funds 

IDEA LOUISIANA ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVE GRANT The purpose of this grant is to 
establish the final two regional technical assistance centers for assistive technology in Louisiana. The 
centers will assist in increasing the capacity of school districts in Regions 7 and 5 to provide assistive 
technology services by making training and technical assistance available to teachers, therapists, 
administrators, paras, and parents. 

QZAB FUND This fund accounts for renovations and other improvements to school facilities. 

CREOSOTE SETTLEMENT FUND This fund accounts for settlement monies received from a class 
action law suit In the Lincoln Creosote Litigation. The money is to be used to construct a new 
classroom wing at Plantation Park Elementary School. 
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BOSSIER PARISH S C H O O L B O A R D 
Benton, Louis iana 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combin ing Balance Sheet 

June 30. 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equtvaJents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Interfund receivables 
Inventory 

Total assets 

TITLE 1 

$ 484,140 

763,453 
1,157 

1.248.750 

TITLE II 

300.740 

267.133 
3,793 

571,666 

TITLE III 

$ 12,070 

10.540 

22,610 

$ 

TITLE IV 

2.652 

26,810 

29,462 

TIT1_EV 

$ 89.512 

5,249 

94,761 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

$ 55,020 

1.048,021 

1.103,041 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Interfund payables 
Deferred revenue 

681,949 
566,801 

-

302,953 
268,713 

-

9.642 
12,968 

-

7.951 
21,511 

-

92,949 
1,812 

-

400,728 
691,175 

11,138 

Total liabilities 1,248,750 571,666 22.610 29.462 94,761 1.103,041 

Fund balances 
Reserved for inventory 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund batarKss $ 1,248,750 $ 571,666 $ 22,610 $ 29,462 $ 94,761 $ 1,103,041 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statementS-
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Exhibit 4 

PRESCHOOL 

39.650 
432 

40,082 

REGION VII 
SERVICE 
CENTER 

$ 

19,801 

19,801 

SCHOOL 
FOOD 

SERVICE 

$ 111,979 
230 

52.799 
2,075,491 

135,087 

2,375,586 

LOUISIANA 
EDUCATIONAL 
EXCELLENCE 

$ 32,879 
1.150,000 

6,070 

1,188,949 

SPECIAL 
FEDERAL 

5 

. 

LOUISIANA 
ASSISTIVE 

TECHNOLOGY 
INITIATIVE 

$ 26.665 

36.285 

62.950 

QZAB CREOSOTE TOTAL 

3,930 

3.930 

$ 100,171 
1,750,000 

2,383 

1,852.554 

$ 1,219,758 
2,900,230 
2,278,194 
2,080.873 

135,087 

8,614.142 

22.435 
17,647 

-

2.723 
14.258 

. 

777,579 
1,424,576 

39,383 

27.919 
3.021 

. 
40,082 16,981 

2.820 

2.241.538 

135.087 
2,820 (1,039) 

134.048 

30,940 

1,158,009 

1.156,009 

40,082 $ 19,801 $ 2,375,586 $ 1,166,949 $ 

31,067 
31.883 

62.950 

3.930 

3.930 

52.842 

-
-

52,842 

1.799.712 

1.799.712 

$ 1,852,554 

2.410.737 
3,054,365 

50,521 

5,515.623 

135,087 
2,963,432 

3.098,519 

$ 8.614,142 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

REVENUES 
Local sources 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 
Sales and use 

Interest earnings 
Food services 
aher 

State sources 
Equalization 
Other 

Federal sources 

Total revenues 

TITLE I 

4,863,446 

4,883.446 

TITLE TITLE III 

1,391,425 

1,391,425 

101,551 

101.551 

TITLE IV TITLE V 

85,828 7,428 

7,428 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

3,904,020 

3,904,020 

EXPENDITURES 
Cuirent 

Instruction 
Regular programs 
Special programs 
Other instructional programs 

Support services 
Student services 
Instructional stetff support 
General administration 
School administration 
Business administration 
Plant services 

Student transportation services 
Central senflces 

Food senflces 

Community service programs 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Defidency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

47,854 
2,363,323 

372,038 

429,663 

855,386 

776,780 

37,466 

936 

694,076 

101,400 

407,553 

141,702 

40,530 

6.164 

41.576 
121 

41,yo 

, 
16.351 

1,956 

(23) 

-
-

-

63,278 
17,118 

5.432 

-
3,831 

753 

2,844 

-
1.206.161 

65,236 

641,662 

1,717.318 
144,809 

89,788 

5.576 

33,470 

-

4,883,446 1,391.425 101,551 

s 

$ 

85,828 7,428 

S 

. 

-

$ 

3,904.020 

J 

-

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandal statements. 
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Exhibit 5 

REGION VII 
SERVICE 

PRESCHOOL CENTER 

SCHOOL LOUISIANA 

FOOD EDUCATIONAL SPECIAL 
SERVICE EXCELLENCE FEDERAL 

LOUISIANA 
ASSISTIVE 

TECHNOLOGY 
INITIATIVE QZAB CREOSOTE TOTAL 

121,336 

121,336 

4,162 

73.146 

6 

2,400,867 

5,662 

2,392,720 

4,542.118 

9,341,173 

4,360 

1,387,735 

1,392,096 

781,802 

781,802 

208,852 

206,852 

19,277 

19,277 

11.663 

1.903,297 

1,914,960 

35,306 

2,400,667 

1,977,943 

2,392,720 
1,387,736 

16,031,968 

24,226,340 

40.663 

58,177 

12,496 

,162 

54,470 

14,501 

10,062,910 

446,896 

152.822 

781,450 

352 

50,122 

3,204 
131,374 
23.844 

308 

115.248 

783.506 

3,660,390 

1,818,583 

1,137,807 

3,366,451 

1,162,242 

144,884 
46,106 

34,406 

6.164 

10.062,910 

115,248 

121,336 73,133 10,06^910 

1,700.000 

13 978,263 

2.807 (844.215) 

601,718 

13 $ (721.737) $ 790,378 _$_ 

1,700,000 

790,378 

367,631 

781.602 206,852 

2.820 S 134,048 J 1.158.009 $ 

s 

s 

19,277 

19,277 

(15,347) 

3,930 

$ 

S 

115,248 

1.799,712 

. 

1,799,712 

1,799,712 

S 

22,338,697 

1,887,643 

1,700,000 

1,700,000 

3,587,643 

(489,124) 

3.098,519 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financtal statements 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-1 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 4,883,446 

4.883,446 

4,883.446 

4,883,446 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Support services 

Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

3,234,240 2,783,215 

430,411 
1,079,359 
139,436 

4.883,446 

429.663 
855,386 
776,780 
37,466 

936 

4,883.446 

451,025 

748 
223,973 
637,344) 

37,466) 

936) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-2 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cun'ent 

Instruction 
Support services 
Pupil support 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Plant services 
Central services 

i ir*******iinit**************TJTI p 11 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 1,336,401 

1.336,401 

883,452 

405,129 
47,820 

1.391,425 

1,391,425 

795,476 

407,553 ( 
141,702 ( 
40,530 ( 

6,164 1 

$ 55,024 

55,024 

87,976 

2,424) 
93,882) 
40,530) 

6,164) 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

1.336.401 1,391,425 X 55,024) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-3 

**TITI F III************************ 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instnjction 
Support services 

Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET 

$ 101,551 

101,551 

99,595 

1,956 

101,551 

ACTUAL 

101,551 

101.551 

83,267 

16,351 
1,956 

( 23) 

101,551 

(UNF; 

$ 

( 

^VORABLE) 

-

_ 

16,328 

16.351) 

23 

-

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-4 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cun'ent 

Instruction 
Support services 
Student services 
Instnjctional staff support 
General administration 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

*«* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *T |T I p IW*** * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

85,828 

85,828 

83,934 

1,894 

85,828 

85,828 $ 

85,828 

63,278 
17,118 
5,432 

85,828 

20,656 
17,118) 
3,538) 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-5 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * T I T I p W * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instnjction 
Support services 
Instructional staff support 
General administration 
Business services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET 

7.428 

7,428 

3,830 

3,172 
426 

7,428 

ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLE) 

7,428 $ 

7,428 

3,831 ( 

753 ( 
2,844 X 

7,428 

1) 

3,172 
327) 

2.844) 

91 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, ^nd Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-6 

****************SFECIAL EDUCATION' 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Supporl services 
Student services 
Instructional staff support 
General adnninistration 
Business services 
Plant services 
Student transportation services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET 

$ 3,877,404 

3,877,404 

1,284,161 

226,610 
2,031,861 

135.619 
133,459 
20,587 
45,107 

3,877,404 

ACTUAL 

3,904,020 

3,904,020 

1,271,397 

641,662 
1,717,318 

144,809 
89,788 

5,576 
33,470 

3,904,020 

(UNFi 

$ 

( 

( 

( 

^VORABLE) 

26,616 

26,616 

12,764 

415,052) 
314,543 

9.190) 
43,671 
15,011 
11,637 

26,616) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-7 

*********************** 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Support services 
Instmctional staff support 
General administration 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET 

$ 121,336 

121.336 

40,663 

76,523 
4,150 

121,336 

p p C Q ^ I - I Q Q I * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

121,336 $ 

121,336 

40,663 

68,177 
12,496 j_ 

121.336 

8,346 
8,346) 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-8 

REVENUES 
Local sources 

Other 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cun-ent 

Instruction 
Support services 
General administration 
Business services 
Plant services 

Total expenditures 

*************REGION VII SERVICE CENTER************ 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 89.755 

89.755 

86,531 

3,211 

89,742 

68,984 
4,162 

73,146 

4,162 

54,470 
14,501 

73.133 

($ 

( 

( 
( 

20,771) 
4,162 

16,609) 

82.369 

51,259) 
14,501) 

16,609 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

13 

13 $ 

13 

13 $ 

94 



BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-9 

**************** 

REVENUES 
Local sources 

Interest eamings 
Food service 
Other 

State sources 
Equalization 

Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Food services 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BAIJ\NCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET 

$ 6 
2,365.370 

5,662 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE*************** 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 
ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

2,392,720 
4,560,508 

9,324,266 

10,049,246 

$ 6 
2,400,667 

5,662 

2,392,720 
4,542.118 j_ 

9.341.173 

10.062,910 ( 

10,049,246 10,062,910 (̂  

724,980) ( 

1,700.000 

975,020 

( 876.269) 

721,737) 

1.700,000 

978,263 

876,269) 

35,297 

18,390) 

16,907 

13,664) 

13,664) 

3,243 

3,243 

$ 98,751 $ ^101,994 $ 3,243 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-10 

REVENUES 
Local sources 

Interest eamings 
State sources 

Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instnjction 
Support services 
Instructional staff support 

.Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

LOUISIANA EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE****** 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 4,360 $ 4,360 

1,387,736 1.387,736 

1,392,096 

192,536 

409,182 

601,718 

790,378 

367,632 

$ 1,158,010 

1,392,096 

448,896 

152,822 

601,718 

790,378 

367,632 

$ 1.158,010 

( 

J 

256,360) 

256,360 

_ 

. 

_ 

-
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-11 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Instruction 
Support services 

Instructional staff support 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

*****************cppQ|A I p p n p p A I ******************** 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 781,802 

781,802 

781,450 

352 

781.802 

781,802 

781,802 

781,450 

352 

781,802 

$ -

-

. 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-12 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

****IDEA LA ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVE***^ 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 208,852 

208,852 

208,852 $ 

208,852 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Instruction 
Support services 

Student services 
General administration 
Business services 
Instnjctional staff support 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

208,852 

50,122 ( 

208.852 

50,122) 

-
7.502 
-

201,350 

3,204 
23.844 

308 
131,374 

( 
( 
( 

3,204) 
16,342) 

308) 
69.976 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-13 

REVENUES 
Interest 

Total revenues 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

BUDGET 

19,277 

QZAB' 

ACTUAL 

19,277 $ 

3.930 $ 

19.277 

19.277 

19,277 

(15,347) 

19,277 

19.277 

(15,347) 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLE) 

19,277 $ 

3,930 $ 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

Exhibit 6-14 

REVENUES 
Settlement funds 
Interest eamings 

Total revenues 

************CREOSOTE SETTLEMENT F=UND*******"** 
VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

1,914,960 

$ 1,903,297 $ 1,903,297 $ 
11,663 11,663 

1,914,960 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Facility acquisition and constnjction 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BAU\NCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

115,248 

115,248 

1,799.712 

115.248 

115,248 

1,799,712 

$ 1,799,712 $ 1,799,712 $ 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

Agency Funds 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES FUND The activities ofthe various individual school accounts are accounted for in 
the school activities agency fund. While the accounts are under the supervision ofthe School Board, they 
belong to the individual schools or their student bodies and are not available for use by the School Board. 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND 
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

BALANCE, 
BEGINNING ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 

Exhibit 7 

BALANCE, 
ENDING 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITES 
Deposits due others 

$ 2,434,618 $ 7.869,838 $ 7.904,359 $ 2,400,097 

$ 2,434,618 $ 7,869,838 $ 7.904,359 $ 2,400,097 
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BOSSIER PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Benton, Louisiana 

Exhibit 8 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES AGENCY FUND 
Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others 

For the Year ended June 30, 2009 

SCHOOL 

Adult Learning Center 
Airline High 
Apollo Elementary 
Bellaire Elementary 
Benton Elementary 

Benton Middle 
Benton High 
Bossier Achievement Center 
Bossier Elementary 
Bossier High 

Bossier Technical Center 
Carrie Martin Elementary 
Central Park Elementary 
Cope Middle 
Legacy Elementary 

Curtis Elementary 
Elm Grove Middle 
Greenacres Middle 
Haughton High 
Haughton Middle 

Ken- Elementary 
Life Skills Center 
Meadowview Elementary 
Mitchell Education Center 
Parkway High 

Plain Dealing High 
Plantation Park Elementary 
Piatt Elementary 
Princeton Elementary 
W.T. Lewis Elementary 

Rusheon Middle 
Stockwell Elementary 
Sun City Elementary 
T.L. Rodes Elementary 
Waller Elementary 

Total 

BALANCE, 
BEGINNING 

$ 7.258 
236,043 

99,958 
35.863 
85,489 

153.895 
271,980 

12,989 
36,152 

105.025 

32.873 
22,321 
34,957 
53,206 
16,513 

68.226 
111,620 
114,922 
225,831 
109,603 

33,530 
3,525 
5,975 
8,667 

108,537 

71,295 
16.473 
78,111 
46.522 
29,970 

91.627 
12,193 
22,530 
48,106 
22.833 

$ 2.434.618 

ADDITIONS 

$ 21,323 
733.172 
181.418 
124,663 
223,986 

343,587 
693,373 

25,076 
33,746 

402,531 

49,671 
45.733 
53.449 

334,690 
263,014 

223,754 
382,797 
267.809 
652.509 
468.533 

65.044 
10,411 
57.622 
12,184 

664,871 

161,837 
67,385 

173.534 
175,493 
284,963 

114,123 
183,885 
108,406 
149,016 
116,230 

$ 7.869,838 

DEDUCTIONS 

$ 17,867 
766,378 
194,171 
120,648 
201,420 

376.299 
696,143 

31.624 
42.735 

437,374 

48.288 
52.697 
50,861 

319.915 
253,444 

223.481 
386,896 
241,687 
647,139 
449.929 

59.920 
9.974 

49,395 
16,030 

657,729 

185,668 
76.709 

171,091 
171.677 
293.103 

119,232 
187.219 
96.282 

155.048 
97.286 

$ 7.904,359 

BALANCE, 
ENDING 

$ 10.714 
202.837 

87,205 
39,878 

108,055 

121.183 
270,210 

6,441 
27.163 
70,182 

34,256 
15,357 
37,545 
67,981 
26,083 

68,499 
107.521 
141,044 
231,201 
128,207 

38,654 
3,962 

14,202 
4,821 

115.679 

47,464 
7,149 

80.554 
50.338 
21.830 

86.518 
8,859 

34,654 
42,074 
41,777 

$ 2,400,097 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

General Exhibit 9 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

The schedule of compensation paid School Board members is in compliance with House Concurrent 
Resolution No. 54 ofthe 1979 Session ofthe Louisiana Legislature. Compensation ofthe School Board 
members is included in the general administrative expenditures ofthe general fund. !n accordance with 
Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method 
of compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $800 per month. The 
president receives an additional $100 per month for performing the duties ofthe president. 

Board Member Amount 

Dr. Jack E. Raley, President $10,200 

William C. Kostelka, Past President 10,200 

Mack Knotts 9,600 

Michael S. Mosura, II 9,600 

James W. Slack 9,600 

Kenneth M. Wiggins 9,600 

Brad Bockhaus 9,600 

Julian Darby 9,600 

Dr. Allison O. Brigham 9,600 

Tammy A. Smith 9,600 

Eddy Ray Presley 9,600 

Linden Webb 9.600 

Total S116.400 
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Bossier Parish School Board 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



s. i 

1 ^ 
5 i 

h- 00 O) o 
O O O T-

CSJ CO ' ^ 

1 - CSI CO T t l O 

l o CO r^ CO O) 

0) 
CD h - CD 0> ^ 

O ^ CM CO 

II 
O CO c 
0) - o 
£ g c 

O CO 
(A 

s 
tD 

to 

c 
ro 
c 

I 
8 
o 
€0 

C 
iS 
i5 
a> 

XJ 
c 
I -

a> 

Q - E 

^ l_ 

i ? 
- « 

(0 

C 

o 
c 
ra 
c 

3 ra 

<D O 

C 

• ^ (0 
Q> ^ 

r o 

3 

iS 
c 
a> 

w E 

? E 
3 0) 

U- > 

o o 
E « 
E 8 
(U c 
§ ^ 

°? 
« 5 
g i f 
c c 
ro — 

m l 
11 
i I O 

c 

s 
c 

8 
u 

CO 
a? 

$ 
CO 
CD 
i ^ 
<D 

-o 

<D 

o ^ 
c ra 
0 « 

P ra 

p 
11 

tit 
is; 

^ I 

c 

O 
(0 

s 
m 

8 
. C 
• 0 
CO 
(U 

0) - : r 

IS 

IS 
c 3 

T3 • " 

O O 

8 8 

<o 

E I c 

6 I 
O) o 

p 
9J ra 
O 2 
C 0) 
ra Q 

11 

105 



s>| 
s. i 

z 

1 ^ SI 

Ic 

u (0 C 

0 (0 

U) 
to o m 

c 
iS 

• D 

0) 

£ 
Q. 
0) 

.^ ra 

. a CO 

E .5 

8:1 

CM S 

Tj- i n 

E r 

CO 
CNJ 

1 

CM 
CM 

• * 

CM 
• ^ ^ 

i n 
CM 
T— 

CO 
CM 

~̂ 

CD 

—̂ 

C 

"** c 
o 
'ra ••= 
g !S 
O :s= 

he
 in

f 
ac

tiv
i 

— m 

ho
w

 
n

d
th

 
"g ro 
ra ^ 
4-> O 
(2 .-g 
<D > 
T3 O 

i ^ 
t - -D 

ea
de

 
B

oa
r 

^ ̂ R 
^ -R 

^1 
*̂  « 

da
ta

 
rv

ic
e 

<U 0) 
b (/) 
3 . . 

• « ^ 
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ĉ s 
5 
U 
•* 

to sp 

P8 
t " 
*-

s 
i • * 

CD 

to 

2"§ 8 2§ 

I 5 « S 

e 

1 I I 
P O o5 109 



ffilgS § § 
^£i§. i^te 
^ « ^ O f h- 8 

M 
s i 
8 " 

S 
5 

§ 
I 
1 -

i 
? o « o (< cif cJ r-.*»- »- o ' r-̂  K" n 

S2 I 

SSSS i 

mt'i 5(g-3rf '• 

-̂
1 -

¥ ^ 

fc" 

S 
S 
d 

s 
% 
r-

s 
5 
a 

m.UMMMM Si 
)C g m' to oT iQ r~ (D 1- V- in t^ m lO 
S to' of cJ O N Tf" "- T- O » B PJ 

<? 
£ 
S: 
CM 

3 
A 

S 
O U> Ot y 

81
6
 

64
6
 

44
3
 

04
5
 

07
1
 

s S . I S - l 
a s - " « 

^ 
& 
to 

§5 
E ^ 
K " 

S 
§ 
to 

§ 
h -

s 
s 
c IQ « <»' CM fl> • - ' <D o T-' o f n W> 1 - ' 

i ••SI 
^ ? 

87
0
 

SO
I
 

41
7
 

02
0
 

43
1
 

70
2,
 

76
2,
 

45
4
 

09
7
 

77
4
 

JQJJJt.cJ cI 

g 
5 

8 

gs 
gs 
8 -

1 -

1 
c 

t 
o 
a 

M •̂  
s 
<o 

8 ' 5 5 

i t 
<o 

i l |3 § l i 
iM 

18
5
 

Oi
l 

94
9
 

91
6
 

52
3
 

46
9
 

09
0
 

04
2,
 

16
0
 

58
2
 

S S - * ^ ĉ  
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KOBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountants, Consultants 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And on Compliance And 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Board Members 
Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton. Louisiana 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parish School Board, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Bossier Parish School Board's basic financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance 
Vkfith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of /Vmerica and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General ofthe 
United States. 

Ititernal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Bossier Parish School Board's interna! control 
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Bossier Parish School Board's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bossier Parish School Board's internal control over 
financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as 
discussed iDeiow, we identified a certain deficiency in intemal control over financial reporting to be a 
significant deficiency. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control 
deficiencies, that adversely affects the Bossier Parish School Board's ability to initiate, authorize, record, 
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such 
that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Bossier Parish School Board's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Bossier 
Parish School Board's internal control. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 2009-F1 through 2009-F5 to be significant 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected by the Bossier Parish School Board's internal control. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be significant deficiencies and accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant 
deficiencies that are considered material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described 
above, we consider item 2009-F3 to be a material weakness. 

1 
A Corporation of Ccrtined Public Accountants • r. o. BOX 4278 • SHRE\T:I*OKT. LA 7ii>wt278 • aifi) 222-2222 • FAX (318)226-7150 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bossier Parish School Board's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Goyemment Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Bossier Parish School Board in a 
separate letter dated December 23, 2009. 

This report is intended solely for the infomnation of the Board, management, others within the School 
Board, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. Although it's intended use of these reports may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Office ofthe Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
December 23, 2009 



ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 
Certified PubUc Accountants, Consaitants 

Report on Compliance With Requirements 
Applicable to Each Major Program And on Internal Control 
Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 

Board Members 
Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana 

Compliance 
We have audited the compliance of Bossier Parish School Board, with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
Bossier Parish School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of law/s, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs 
is the responsibility of Bossier Parish School Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on Bossier Parish School Board's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Bossier Parish School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Bossier Parish 
School Board's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, School Board, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of Bossier Parish School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bossier Parish 
School Board's intemal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Bossier Parish School Board's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of interna! control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, 
that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a 
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remote likelihcx)d that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
more than inconsequenfial will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

Our considerafion of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this secfion and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might 
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any defidencies in intemal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the School Board for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2009. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming 
our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial 
statements. The accximpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the audifing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the informafion of the Board, management, others within the School 
Board, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. Although it's intended use of these reports may be 
limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Office of the Louisiana 
Legislafive Auditor as a public document. 

1 ? w^ee^ iv Awi* Coi 
ROBERTS. CHERRY AND COMPANY 

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
December 23, 2009 
Except for Note 6 as to which the date is October 8, 2010 



Bossier Parish School Board 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Grantor/ 

Pass Through Grantor/Program Name 

CFDA 

Number 

Pass-Through 

Grantor No. Expenditures 

CASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

United States Department of Agriculture 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 

School Breakfast & Snack Program 

National School Lunch Proyam 

Child Nutrition (Region VII) 

Total Child Nutrition Program 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Treasury: 

Schools & Roads {National Forest Lands) 

Total United States Department of Agriculture 

10.553 

10.555 

10.555 

10.665 

008-SL-D804 

008-SL-0704 

Contract #1553-5516 

N/A 

$ 871.879 

3,466.909 

4,162 

4,342,950 

9,035 

4,351,985 

United States Department of Education 

Direct Programs: 

Impact Aid 84.041A N/A 962.252 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education: 

Education for Homeless Children & Youth 

Adult Education - State Grant 

Adult Education - One Stop Centers 

Adult Education - Corrections Grant 

Adult Education TANF (STEP Program) 

Title I Grants to Local Educational ^encies 

Federal Title I (Region VII) 

Special Education Cluster: 

Grants to States (Part B) 

IDEA Part B Stimulus Funds 

Other Federal Special Ed. Grants (Region VII) 

Louisiana Assistive Technology Grant 

Preschool Grants 

Preschool (Region VII) 

84.196A 

84.002A 

84,a02A 

84.002A 

93.558B 

84.010A 

84.010 

84.027A 

84.027A 

84.027 

84.027A 

84.173A 

84.173 

28-09-H1-08 

28-08-44-08 

28-09-44-08 

28-08-13-08 

28-09-13-08 

28-08-23-08 

28-09-23-08 

28-09EP08 

28-0&-TI-08 

28-09-TI-08 

Contract #2879-6712 

28-08-B1-08 

28-09-B1-08 

Contract* 1851-6640 

28-09-36-08 

28-08-B6-08 

28-09-P1-08 

Contract #1855-6060 

124.740 

112.244 

4.191 

4,117 

3.231 

13,024 

892.950 

3,990,496 

47,875 

3,829.529 

168,250 

40,602 

46,980 

236,984 

8.308 

16,255 

7,552 

4.883,446 

2.151 

3,877,404 

26.617 

5.586 

208.852 

121,336 

1,017 



CASH FEDERAL AWARDS (continued) 

Federal Grantor/ 

Pass Through Grantor/Program Name 

Vocational Education: 

Basic Grants to States 

Cari Peri<ins Fiscal Year 2008 Can^over 

Innovative Education Program Strategies - Title V 

Federal Title VI (Region VII)) 

Title ll Eisenhower Professional Development 

Federal TiUe II (Region VII) 

Title III Program for Limited English Proficient Children 

Title III English Language Acquisition - Student Influx 

Title IV Safe & Dmg-Free Schools 

Enhancing Education Through Technology 

Teacher Certification (Region VII) 

Federal Reading First (Region VU) 

Math & Science Partnership Act 

Math & Science Cohort 

Math & Science Get Smart 

Total United States Department of Education 

CFDA 

Number 

84.048A 

84.048A 

84.298A 

84.017 

84.367 

84.367 

84.365A 

84,365A 

84.186A 

84.318X 

84.318X 

84.318X 

84.381A 

34.357 

84.366B 

84.3668 

84.3668 

Pass-Through 

Grantor No. 

28-09-02-08 

28-08-02-08 C 

28-08-80-08 

28-09-80-08 

Contracts 1858-6490 

28-08-50-08 

28-09-50-08 

Contract #1860-8593 

28-08-60-08 

28-09-60-08 

28-08-33-08 

28-08-70-08 

28-09-70-08 

28-08-49-08 

28-08-49-08 C/0 TO 2009 

28-08-49-08 

Contracts 1851-6109 

Contract #1859-6398 

28 07 MP-08 

28 07-MC-08 

28-08-MP-08 

2.261 

5,167 

20,699 

1,315.704 

2.524 

90.424 

16,912 

68,916 

(1.167) 

12,626 

43,563 

Expenditures 

224.246 

17,185 

7.428 

239 

1,336,403 

4.049 

92,948 

8.603 

85.828 

55.022 

352 

3,215 

9.849 

10,195 

197,292 

12,457.595 

United States Department of Defense 

Direct Programs: 

Flood Control Project 

Department of the Army - ROTC 

Star Base 

Total United States Department of Defense 

12.106 

12.UKN 

12.UKN 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

45.628 

503,510 

274.304 

823,442 

United States Department of Justice 

Passed through Bossier Parish Sheriff: 

Secure Our Schools Matciiing Grant 16.710 20D8CKWX0674 82,530 

NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS 

United States Department of Agriculture 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Agriculture & Forestry: 

USDA Commodities 10.550 n/a 203.330 

Total Federal Expenditures $ 17,918,882 



Bossier Parish School Board 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Note 1 - General 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Bossier Parish School Board and is presented on the nnodified accrual basis of accounting. The 
infomnation in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial 
statements. 

Note 2 - Noncash Programs 
Commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United 
States Department of Agriculture. 

Note 3 - Relationship to Financial Statements 
Federal awards revenues are reported in the School Board's fund financial statements as follows: 

Funds 
Federal 
Sources 

General 
Title I 
Title II 
Title III 
Title IV 
Title V 
Special Education 
Pre-School 
Region IV Service Center 
School Food Service 
Special Federal Fund 
Louisiana Assistive Technology Initiative 
Total $ 

1,886,913 
4,883,446 
1,391,425 

101.551 
85,828 

7,428 
3,904,021 

121,336 
4,162 

4,542,118 
781,802 
208,852 

17,918,882 

Note 4 - Relationship to Federal Financial Reports 
Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the federal financial 
reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Note 5 - Matching Revenues 
For those funds that have matching revenue and state funding, federal expenditures were determined by 
deducting matching revenues from total expenditures. 

Note 6 - Restatement of Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Subsequent to issuance of our original report dated December 23, 2009, we have determined the Title II 
program {CFDA 84.367) needs to be treated as a major program because it had not been audited as 
such in the prior two years. The Federal audit requirement testing of this program was completed 
October 8, 2010, resulting in the dual dated Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with 
Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Intemal Control Over Compliance in Accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133. 



Bossier Parish School Board 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

A. Financial Statement Audit 

Type of auditor's report issued on the basic financial statements: Unqualified 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weaknesses identified? Yes 

• Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes 

Noncompliance material to the basic financial statements noted? No 

B. Audit of Federal Awards 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weaknesses identified? No 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) 
of OMB Circular A-133? No 

Any instances of material noncompliance in major programs disclosed during the audit? No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA number Name of federal orooram or cluster 
84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
10.553 & 10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster 
84.367 Title II Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 

The dollar threshold used to Identify Type A programs: $532,018 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: No 



Section II - Financial Statement Findings Reported in Accordance with Governmental Auditing 
Standards 

Current Year Findings and Responses 

Reference # and title: 20D9-F1 Unrecorded Liabilities 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: Accaial basis accounting requires matching expenses with 
the appropriate period and recording accounts payable as necessary. 

Type of Finding: Significant deficiency 

Condition: The School Board did not capture all significant accounts payable that were due at 
year-end. 

Effect: Expenses and liabilities for the year were understated. Audit adjustments in amounts 
significant to the financial statements were necessary to record these amounts due. 

Cause: Some invoices paid subsequent to year end were not recorded as a liability at June 30, 
2009, because they were either budgeted for the following school year or the date of the invoice 
was after year end. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School Board review all available infomiation on invoices 
received subsequent to year-end and prior to closing for information that would indicate which 
period the invoice belongs. Such indicators are invoice dates, shipping dates, and service dates. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: In order to have textbooks in place in at the beginning 
of school it is necessary to initiate orders well before the end of the fiscal year. These books are 
to be placed in service during the next fiscal year and are budgeted in that year. It has been a 
long standing practice of the School Board to record the purchase during the year in which the 
textbooks are budgeted. This comprises the major portion of unrecorded liabilities. 

Another large unrecorded liability was an invoice from Caddo Parish School Board. The accounts 
payable staff has been instructed that the controlling criteria for determining the reporting year is 
the invoice date, unless instructed othenwise. Although the Caddo Parish School Board invoice 
was dated July 29, the underiying transaction took place in the prior fiscal year. 

In the future textbook purchases will be recorded in accounts payable and charged to prepaid 
expenses at year end. As for other invoices it will be necessary for an accountant to review all 
invoices submitted for payment for a period of time after year end to insure that all invoices for 
transactions that took place in the prior year are recorded in that year, regardless of the invoice 
date. 

Reference # and title: 2009-F2 Fixed Assets 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: GASB 34 requires that fixed assets with cost exceeding the 
capitalization threshold established by the School Board be added to the fixed asset listing and 
depreciated. 

Type of Finding: Significant deficiency 

Condition: While examining the fixed asset additions, we noted the following issues: 



1. Some of the large building additions included land costs that had already been recorded. 
Therefore, the building additions were overstated on the fixed asset ledger by $768,284. 

2. The capitalization policy threshold was increased by the board effective July 1, 2008, 
from $1,000 to $5,000. However, the additions under $5,000 continued to be added to 
the fixed asset report. 

3. The textbook additions could not be reconciled to the general ledger and therefore an 
adjustment was made to reduce additions by approximately $204,000. 

4. Excel spreadsheets are maintained for constnjction project expenses. When a project is 
complete, the information fi-om the spreadsheets is entered into the fixed asset ledger. 
These spreadsheets are used to determine the total construction in progress at year 
end. However, costs continued to be added to the spreadsheets after year end resulting 
in problems with cutoff. 

5. The fixed asset software used by the School Board is cumbersome and difficult to 
manage. Management was not able to accumulate informafion on the current year 
additions, depreciation expense, and disposals in a format that allowed them to 
accurately roll forward fixed asset infomnation from year to year. Personnel at the Central 
Office are unable to run reports themselves. Requesting reports from the IT department 
is the only way that they can be obtained. It also appears that calculations can be 
manipulated by IT personnel. 

Effect: The School Board did not have adequate reports to support their financial statement 
balances. In addition, some of the additions to the fixed asset schedule did not have supporting 
documentation. These issues caused the completion of audit procedures that related to fixed 
assets to be delayed until the reports were corrected. 

Cause: A reconciliafion of the fixed asset listing to the general ledger was not being performed on 
a regular basis. 

Recommendation: We recommend that a supervisor level accountant review and recalculate the 
detailed items in the completed construction project spreadsheet prior to entering the costs into 
the fixed asset software. This will help ensure that the amounts are accurate, the formulas are 
calculating property, and the costs have not been added previously. Also, we recommend that 
management communicate any changes in policy approved by the board to the personnel 
perfonning the dufies related to that policy. In addition, we recommend a periodic reconciliafion 
between the general ledger expenses and the fixed asset ledger. The excel spreadsheets for 
constnjcfion projects should be saved as of year end to ensure that cutoff is proper. These will be 
used to record construcfion in progress as of June 30. Finally, we recommend that the School 
Board consider purchasing a new fixed asset and inventory software. This will enable reports to 
be generated easily and someone other than the IT department to generate and understand how 
the reports are generated. 

Management's Correcth^e Action Plan: The fixed asset system does not interface with the 
accounting system at any point. Every entry in the fixed asset system must be pulled from the 
accounting system and manually entered. 

The capitalization threshold has been increased by the State and the School Board to $5,000; 
however, stafijes require that assets purchased with 8(g) fijnds must be recorded in fixed assets 
if they have a value of $250 or more. Also, management has sfipulated that certain items which 
are subject to theft be recorded regardless of value. 

The balance in the "Textbook" account in the general ledger is made up of actual payments made 
to textbook vendors. The additions to textbooks recorded in the fixed asset system are obtained 
from the person in charge of parish textbooks and is the value of textbooks placed at schools. 
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Although spreadsheets are maintained for construction projects, the purpose of the spreadsheets 
is to keep track of project expenditures in relation to the construction budget. The infomnation 
therein is adapted for use tn the fixed asset system. 

The Special Ed. Department has purchased a new system to maintain their fixed assets. There 
has been discussion about extending that system for use system-wide. We will evaluate the new 
fixed asset system to detennine if its adoption is a viable altemative and if it will remedy any of 
the problems we have with the current system. 

It will continue to be necessary to record 8(g) assets with a value of $250 or more. Assets which 
are being recorded simply to keep track of them in the event of misappropriation will be 
maintained in a separate file. 

All source information will be reviewed before the information is recorded in the fixed asset 
system. 

Reference # and title: 2009-F3 Encumbrance Accounts 

Criteria or Specific Reguirement: Governmental funds adopt encumbrance accounfing, under 
which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are 
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. 

Type of Finding: Material weakness 

Condition: The School Board reserved a portion of the General Fund's fund balance for 
encumbrances at June 30, 2009. The encumbrances consisted of major construction contracts 
totaling approximately $3.4 million. The encumbrance entry was also incorrectiy recorded to 
liability and expense accounts. In addition, the amount was not reduced for the expenses relating 
to the construction contracts that occurred prior to year end. 

Effect: Liabilifies and expenses in the General Fund were overstated at year end by 
approximately $3.4 million. Also the reserve for encumbrances was overstated by approximately 
$480,000 which related to consb'uction project expenses that occurred prior to year end. 

Cause: The School Board determined the amount of encumbrances at year end by totaling the 
amount of the commitments that were approved by the board during the year. The year-to-date 
expenditures relating to these commitments were not taken into consideration. The accounting 
system's encumbrance function was not used to generate these amounts. In addition, the amount 
recorded to liability and expense accounts occurred because of a misunderstanding of how the 
encumbrances should be recorded. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School Board clean up its encumbrance system so it can 
be used as designed. Old purchase orders should be removed from the system, and the balances 
in the accounts should be reviewed and reconciled to current support on a regular basis. This will 
eliminate the need for a manual calculation of encumbrances at year end. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: We felt that we since the construcfion items were 
budgeted in the prior year, had been bid during that year and contracts had been executed, that 
we had an obligation to pay sufficient enough to record the items as expenses in the prior year, 
although, they should have been recorded in accounts payable rather than in encumbrances. 

In \he past we have used tiie exisfing encumbrance system, with adjustments, to determine the 
amount encumbered at year end. In the future we will periodically review encumbrances to 
ensure that only active purchases orders are included thereon. 
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Reference # and title: 2009-F4 Internal Service Fund - Claims Paid 

Criteria or Specific Reguirement: The amounts recorded to the hospitalization claims paid 
account in the financial statements should be reconciled monthly to the reports provided by Blue 
Cross Blue Shield. The claims paid should be recorded on an accrual basis rather than a cash 
basis. 

Type of Finding: Significant deficiency 

Condition: The Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) confirmafion for the claims paid from July 1, 
2008 to June 30, 2009, did not agree to the balance for claims paid on the School Board's 
general ledger. 

Effect: The claims and premium account balances as well as several otiier accounts were 
materially misstated at June 30, 2009. In addition, a prior period adjustment for over $1 million 
was recorded. 

Cause: Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) pays the hospitalization claims and then bills the School 
Board for reimbursement. The School Board records the expense on a cash basis when a check 
is written to BCBS instead of when the claims were actually paid by BCBS. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School Board implement policies that require the 
premiums and claims to be reconciled to the reports from BCBS on a montiily basis. Claims paid 
should be recorded on an accmal basis to ensure proper cut off at year end. Also, the expenses 
should be properiy classified between administrative fees, claims paid, consulting services, life 
insurance premiums, and refunds. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: Blue Cross billings are made up of medical claims, drug 
billings, and administrative fees and are generally submitted on a weekly basis. The first bill in 
July usually includes some days in June, however, tiie number of days varies and there is no 
information provided by Blue Cross to determine which costs belong in June. 

The amount provided to the auditors by Blue Cross for claims paid during \he fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2009, not only did not agree with our expenditure account, it did not agree with their own 
billings. 

We will request that Blue Cross provide sufficient information to more accurately record medical 
costs. 

Reference # and title: 2009-F5 Findings from Legislative Auditor 
The Louisiana Legislative Auditor performed a compliance audit for the period ending October 
2008 and issued their report dated April 8, 2009. Based on the results ofthe audit, the Legislative 
Auditor made recommendations regarding improving operations and internal conti"ol. A summary 
of the findings noted in the report follows: 

Air Conditioners/Purchasing 
The Legislative Auditor noted that the School Board Administi-ation may have violated Public Bid 
Law for air conditioning purchases and installations. It was also noted that neither purchase 
orders nor receiving reports were used and work orders were created after the work was 
complete. 

Haughton Middle School 
The School Board may have violated the Open Meetings Laws by discussing the Haughton 
Middle School roof and mold remediation contract during executive session. In addition, the 
School Board may have violated Public Bid Law related to tiie emergency mold remediation 
contract. 
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Credit Card Charges 
The School Board Maintenance Department employees authorized credit card transactions 
related to Ark-La-Tex Air Repair, Inc., services that did not occur. 

Scrap Metal 
The School Board Maintenance Department is missing cash fi-om the sale of scrap metal and 
may have violated record retention laws through discarding records of scrap metal sales and 
subsequent purchases witii the proceeds. In addition, the Maintenance Department did not 
comply with Louisiana law when disposing surplus movable property. 

Ethics 
One current School Board employee performed work and received money from a current vendor 
in violation of Louisiana ethics laws. One fonner School Board employee may have violated 
Louisiana ethics laws by receiving money for services performed for the School Board witiiin two 
years of Uie end of his employment 

Professional Services 
A School Board attomey may have violated the Rules of Professional Conduct during the fime he 
perfonmed services for the School Board. In addition, the adminisfi-ation did not execute a signed 
contractual agreement with its extemal contracted attorneys. 

Corrective Action Taken 

Air Conditioners/Purchasing 
As of September 2008, all purchases over $2,000 are routed through tine Purchasing Department 
for prior approval The Maintenance Department has implemented stronger purchasing 
procedures which include the required use of purchase orders. In addition, all purchases over 
$2,000 are now required to have at least three quotes and are processed Unrough the Purchasing 
Department The Maintenance Department has established an inventory list of all air conditioning 
units with model and serial numbers. 

Haughton Middle School 
The School Board obtained guidance from the Board counsel to the specific state statutes on 
exceptions to open meetings to ensure compliance with tiie state laws. Also, tfiere have been no 
declared emergencies since the date of the finding in the report, but Administration plans to 
evaluate all issues that require immediate attention to ensure tiiat it meets the requirements of an 
emergency declaration. 

Credit Card Charges 
The Transportation Department still uses fuelman cards to fuel buses in the outiying areas; 
however, all other credit cards were destroyed and are no longer used by any school board 
employee other tiian tiie Superintendent 

Scrap Metal 
The School Board Administi-ation took action to ensure policies and procedures regarding 
disposal of surplus/scrap materials and movable property are followed. An in-service training was 
held with the Maintenance Department to reinforce the policies and procedures. All funds 
collected should now be paid in full by check made out to the Bossier Parish School Board. 

Ethics 
In January 2009, an attomey from the Ethics Board presented an in-service training to all School 
Board administrators and Maintenance Department employees on the specifics of the Louisiana 
Code of Govemmental Etiiics. The information provided is to be reviewed annually with all 
employees by Uieir appropriate supervisors and documentafion will be maintained to ensure 
compliance. 
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Professional Services 
The School Board no longer uses tiie professional services of the attomey in question. In 
addition, tiie School Board has not entered into any new contracts with any attorneys. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Responses 

Current Year Findings and Responses 

None 
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Bossier Parish School Board 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Reference # and title: 08-F1 Late Submission of Audit Report to Legislative Auditor 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: Louisiana Revised StatiJte 23.413A(5)(a)(i) requires that".. . audits shall be completed within 
six months of the close of the entity's fiscal year." 

The School Board requested an extension of time by the Legislative Auditor's Office and the extension 
was approved with a deadline for submission of March 31, 2009. 

Corrective action taken: The audit report for the year ended June 30, 2009, was filed by December 31, 
2009. 

Reference # and title: 08-F2 Unrecorded QZAB Bonds 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: The School Board did not record revenues and expenditures in connection with the issuance 
of Qualified Zone Academy Bonds in the amount of $3,500,000 in the financial records for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2007. The Financial Accounfing Departinent did not receive monthly statements of QZAB 
investment account or debt service accounts during tiie 2007-2008 fiscal year. The requests for 
reimbursement for costs incurred for construction as of June 30, 2008 which was to be paid from the 
proceeds of tiie QZAB bonds had not been requested from the third party custodian as of February, 2009. 

Corrective action taken: Steps were taken to ensure activity related to these t)onds was properiy 
recorded in the current year. Proceeds were requested and received before 2009 fiscal year end. 

Reference # and title: 08-F3 Capital Asset Listing 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: Land: While examining the general ledger history for the General Fund and the Bossier 
Unified Construcfion Fund, it was noted that land with a value of $176,843 had not been added to tiie 
capital asset listing as of June 30, 2008. 

Equipment A capital lease for a S8700 media server, communication managers, and data equipment 
with a cost of $1,581,000, was entered into during December, 2007, but the equipment was not added to 
the capital asset listing as of June 30, 2008. 

Construction in Process: Completed constnjcfion projects with a total cost of $11,272,542 had not been 
added to buildings on the capital asset listing as of June 30, 2008. 

Corrective action taken: Steps were taken to properiy capture all capital assets within tiie capital asset 
listing; however, several items were not properly recorded on the listing in the current year. This is a 
repeat finding. See current year finding 2009-F2. 
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Reference # and title: 08-F4 Cash Kept on Premises In Maintenance Department 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: During June, 2008, tine Security Office of the School Board was notified by the Supervisor at 
the Maintenance Department tiiat approximately $1,400 was missing from a safe which was located in an 
office which adjoined the Supervisor's office. Invesfigation by the Security Officer noted that on June 11, 
2008, $1,472 was received firom a scrap sale of air conditioner units and other materials removed from 
atop one of the schools. The cash was placed in tiie safe where it remained until it was noticed to be 
missing on June 18, 2008 by a Maintenance Departinent employee. The money from the scrap sales was 
used by the Maintenance Department for such events as fish fries, Christinas parties, etc. The information 
was given to law enforcement officials of Bossier Parish for further investigafion. 

Corrective action taken: The use of the safe in the Maintenance Department has been discontinued. 
Cash received is given directiy to tiie Cenfi-al Office, and no money is kept in the Maintenance 
Department. 

Reference # and title: 08-F5 Fraud Perpetrated by Maintenance Department EmployeesA^endor 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: During the summer of 2008, an investigation was launched by the School Board security 
officer into missing money in the Maintenance Department and from this investigation, questions arose 
into tiie activities involving three Maintenance Department employees and a vendor the School Board 
uses for the installation of air conditioners and heating units. The law enforcement officials of Bossier 
Parish and the FBI conducted an investigation in which three School Board employees who woric in the 
Maintenance Department were arrested and indicted for conspiracy and mail fraud. The indictment 
alleged that employees of the maintenance department would inform the vendor of the lowest bid on a 
particular project so tiie vendor could submit the lowest bid and win the cont'act The indictinent also 
alleged that the defendants charged for more expensive air conditioning equipment than was actually 
installed, charged for equipment and installation on rooms that did not exist, charged for amounts in 
excess of tiie contract price, and replaced air conditioners that were functioning properiy. The employees, 
along with the owners of the business, plead guilty to the charges in court. 

A sample of 16 units was selected from paid invoices of this vendor and noted that two of these units 
could not be located and in another instance the School Board paid for a five ton unit and received a four 
ton unit. All of the paid invoices for this vendor were reviewed for proper approvals. All of tiie invoices 
were properiy approved by the department supervisor. The invoices submitted for payment did not 
include detailed information such as the make, model number or serial number of the units purchased. 

Corrective action taken: The School Board strengthened its intemal control policies related to accounts 
payable and maintenance activities. No additional instances of fraud were reported during the current 
year. 

Reference # and title: 08-F6 Violations ofthe Local Government Budget Act 

Year of Origination: June 30, 2008 

Condition: The School Board adopted a revised budget for tiie School Food Service Fund with a deficit 
fund balance of $778,548. 

Corroctlve action taken: The School Food Service Fund was not budgeted with a deficit balance in the 
current year. 
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ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 
Certified PubUc Accountants, Consultants 

Management Letter 

Board Members 
Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parish School Board (the "School 
Board" or "BPSB") for the year ended June 30. 2009, we considered the School Board's intemal control to 
plan our auditing procedures for the purposes of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and 
not to provide assurance on the internal control. 

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving the internal control and other operational 
matters that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated December 
18, 2009, on the financial statements of the School Board. We will review the status of these comments 
during our next audit engagement Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been 
discussed with appropriate members of management are intended to improve the internal controls or 
result in other operating efficiencies. We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at 
your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the 
recomnnendations. Our comments and management's responses are summarized as follows: 

2009-M1 Receiving Reports 

Comment: During our walkthrough procedures, we noted the receiving report related to January 2009 
purchase order (# 90982) was not signed or dated. Part of the internal control system related to accounts 
payable as it was described to us required purchase orders to be signed and dated. Because the report 
was not signed and dated, there is no trail of whether or not the items on the report were actually 
received. 

Recommendation: The policies and procedures over purchasing were revised after the fraud occurred 
and the Legislative Auditor conducted their compliance audit in April 2009, We recommend that the 
School Board strictly enforce those policies and procedures over intemal controls. Receiving reports 
should always be signed and dated by the person doing the receiving. Invoices should not be paid until all 
ofthe appropriate documentation has been obtained. 

Management's response: It is already the policy of the BPSB that receiving reports be dated and 
signed. Policies are strictly observed. In this instance the transaction slipped through, but it is not an 
example of our normal procedures. 

2009-M2 Purchasing and Accounts Payable 

Comment: Based on our system documentation of the purchasing and accounts payable system, the 
Finance Director is involved at several levels of the review and approval process. The School Board was 
the victim of fraud that took advantage of weaknesses in the purchasing and accounts payable system. 
As a response, the Finance Director became more involved in the accounts payable system. He now 
reviews all requisitions over $500. We believe that this dollar amount is too low and is not an effective use 
of the Director of Finance's time. 

Recommendation: The School Board should consider raising the dollar amount on requisitions that 
require the review and approval of the Director of Finance. The School Board should centralize their 
purchasing and delegate the authority to a trusted individual, and the Finance Director's involvement can 
be reduced to performing a final review when checks are signed. 
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Management's response: Steps have already been taken to strengtiien the purchasing function, and we 
will consider reducing the involvement of the Director of Finance. 

2009-M3 Workers' Compensation Cash Account 

Comment: The workers' compensation cash account is not recorded on the statement of net assets. The 
School Board has historically kept this account off the statement of net assets because a third-party 
handles the transactions for the account. However, should the third-party decide to close the account the 
client will receive these amounts back. Therefore, we believe tills account should be recorded as an asset 
of the School Board. 

Recommendation: We recommend tiie School Board record the cash balance at the end of each 
statement cycle with the corresponding credit to workers' compensation claim expense. 

Management's response: We transfer to the Wori^er's Compensation Claims Account only sums 
sufficient to cover the checks written by our third party administrator. The reconciled balance should be 
zero. The balance on the reconciliation prepared by the Uiird party administrator indicates a balance of 
$9,700 at year end. If this is a true balance then it should be entered on the books of tiie School Board. 
Any bank balance above that amount is due to outstanding checks, and if not redeemed should be 
remitted to tiie Unclaimed Properties Division of tiie Treasury Department by the third party adminisb-ator. 

2009-M4 Stale Dated Checks 

Comment: The bank reconciliation has many outstanding checks over a year old listed as reconciling 
items. These checks may not have been received by the payee. The School Board has an obligation to 
attempt to consummate payment for these items. 

Recommendation: The accounting personnel should periodically investigate checks older than one year. 
Attempts should be made to contact the payee, and if necessary, void the old checks and reissue new 
checks to payee. If payment cannot be consummated, the funds should be escheated to tiie State of 
Louisiana as unclaimed property. 

Management's response: Holders of long outstanding checks were notified and given sufficient time to 
request replacement checks. As of November 1, 2009, the unclaimed balance of long outstanding 
checks was remitted to the Unclaimed Property Division of the State Treasury Department. 

The process of handling long outstanding checks will be perfomried annually. 

2009-M5 Fair Market Value Reporting 

Comment: Investments with an original maturity date of greater tiian one year are carried at cost and not 
at fair market value. At year end, this caused investments and the unrealized gain on investinents to be 
understated. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School Board record all debt investments witii an original 
maturity date greater than one year at fair market value rather than cost. 

Management's response: The fair market value adjustment will be made in the future. 
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2Q09-M6 Accrued Retirement Expense 

Comment: Accnjed retirement expenses for amounts paid in July 2009 were recorded as a reduction to 
cash as opposed to a liability. The expectation is to accrue expenses as liabilities and not a reduction in 
cash. As a result, accrued expenses and cash were both understated at year end. 

Recommendation: We recommend the School Board record accrued liabilities as an increase in a 
liability account as opposed to a decrease in the cash balance. 

Management's response: State withholding taxes are remitted by ACH ti-ansactions and are recorded in 
the general ledger by joumal entry. When making tiie year end joumal entry we included the ACH for the 
June 25th payroll although it had not cleared the bank, nor, been included on the bank reconciliation. In 
the future we will only record as reductions to cash ACH transactions that have cleared the bank. 

Alternatively, since the entiy had been initiated witii Uie Departinent of Revenue prior to year end, we 
could show it as we have it recorded and include it as a reconciling item in the bank reconciliation, much 
like an outstanding check. 

2009-M7 Purchased Accrued Interest 

Comment: The School Board purchased accmed interest on an investinent, and it was recorded as an 
increase to the asset as opposed to a reduction in interest income. Generally accepted account principles 
dictate that accrued interest tiiat is purchased should be reflected as a reduction in interest income. As a 
result, assets and income were overstated by the amount of purchased accrued interest. 

Recommendation: We recommend that future purchases of investments that have accrued interest 
should be recorded in accordance with GAAP. 

Management's response: We recognize that purchased interest should be recorded as a reduction in 
income and will record it as such in tiie future. 

2009-M8 Planning and Purchasing Department 

Comment: The Director of Planning spends the majority of his time he is dealing with constmction 
administi-ation, planning and preparing reports for the School Board, responding to requests for 
information, documents and interviews, energy education, and regulatory compliance. What were 
originally viewed as "temporary" duties for planning and construction, have resulted in permanent 
assignments and have become time consuming. The Director also has all supervisory duties for the 
Purchasing function. 

We believe tiiat the Purchasing function does not have the supervision, ti-aining, and attention that it 
requires. Additionally, we believe other departinents such as Maintenance and Transportation need the 
sti-ong expertise and assistance with purchasing procedures, obtaining quotes, and complying with laws 
and policies. 

Recommendation: We recommend tiie following ways to improve tills department: 

Restructuring - We recommend that the Purchasing function and the Planning function be divided 
into two separate departments. 

Hirino a Director of Purchasing - We recommend hiring an Experienced Director of Purchasing to 
njn the Purchasing and Warehouse Department This employee would be experienced in 
purchasing/ procurement and bidding. He or she would direct the Purchasing and Warehouse 
staff and develop written policies and procedures for all facets of purchasing. All purchase orders 
would be reviewed and approved by the Director. 
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It is essential that the Director of Purchasing work closely with and assist the 
Supervisors/Directors of Transportation, Maintenance, and Planning as it relates to 
purchasing/procurement for their departments. We believe this would allow tiiose departments to 
coordinate and work more cohesively resulting in a more efficient and effective process. Hiring a 
person who is highly qualified and works well with the other departments is crucial. In addition, 
the staff working in this department should be well fi-ained and follow a written policies and 
procedures manual. 

Management's response: This process will be completed in January, 2010. 

2009-M9 Intemal Audit Department 

Comment: The majority of Internal Audit department's fime is spent on School Activity Funds and Fixed 
Asset Management. The Department does perfonn some internal audit functions but only as it relates to 
School Activity Funds. No operational audits are perfomied by the intemal audit department. 

Recommendation: In order to develop appropriate intemal audit programs and perfonn intemal audit 
work, we recommend hiring at least one or two experienced intemal auditors and/or outsourcing 
operational audits in areas such as payroll, purchasing, maintenance, child nutiition, transportation, 
warehouse, and federal and state grants. 

The Board should adopt an audit charter ttiat includes specific fijnctions and responsibilities of tiie 
intemal Audit Departinent An audit plan should be developed by the Board and tiie Intemal Auditor that 
includes activities to be audited, when they will be audited, and the estimated time required. 

Management's response: This process will be completed in 2010. 

2009-M10 Maintenance Department 

Comment: The maintenance department appears to need more ti-aining and staffing as it relates to 
purchasing and bidding policies and procedures. 

Recommendation: We recommend shifting all of the purchasing, credit card reconciliations, bidding, and 
business type operations for Maintenance to the restmctured Purchasing Department The Maintenance 
Supervisor would be ultimately responsible for coordinating and worthing witii tiie Director of Purchasing 
as it relates to tiiese functions. 

Management's response: Once tiie new Supervisor of Purchasing is hired, the purchasing process for 
the Maintenance department will reviewed. 

2009-M11 Food Service/Child Nutrition Department 

Comment: Food Service Department operates autonomously, and performs its own accounting function. 
The department does all of its own purchasing, bidding, processing invoices, and handling of receivables. 

Recommendation: We recommend the following ways in which this department can be improved: 

Cenfa-alize accounting fijnction - We recommend that the Food Service accountant be moved 
under the Accounting Department All of tiie processing of invoices, receivables, and payments 
should be centi^lized in one building and one department By moving tiiese functions, it will 
create efficiencies and allow the accounting staff to work as one cohesive unit. 

Additional staff - It appears that there is a need for at least one additional bookkeeper or 
accountant to assist with tiie accounting functions for Food Service. This employee could also 
assist the Accounts Payable when needed. 
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Purchasing and bidding - The Food Service departinent appears to be knowledgeable in the 
purchasing and bidding function and is considered by others to perform tiiat fijnction well. 
However, all of tiie purchasing and bidding should be centi'alized and moved to the Purchasing 
Department 

Management's response: Centralization of Food Service accounting function and need for an additional 
bookkeeper will be reviewed. 

Once tiie new Supervisor of Purchasing is hired, the purchasing process for the Food Service department 
will reviewed. 

2009-M12 Payroll and Human Resources Departments 

Comment: We noted that currently there is a lack of segregation of duties within the Payroll Department. 
The Payroll Department determines the new employee's salary, fi^om approved salary schedules, sets up 
the employee in tiie payroll system, enters infonnation for current employees receiving position/salary 
changes, and processes payroll. 

Recommendation: To ensure proper segregation of duties and responsibilities, we recommend a shift of 
some of tiie duties cunrently handled by Payroll to the Human Resources Department Human Resources 
should determine from an approved salary schedule the appropriate salary for all new employees and set 
up tiie new infonnation in the payroll system. They should also maintain all employee information in the 
system such as name changes, address changes, all salary and wage adjustinents, and terminations. 

Management's response: We are in the process of implementing this recommendation. 

2009-M13 Insurance and Risk Management Department 

Comment: The Insurance Department consists of two clerks who take care of. not only tiie active 
employees' health, dental and life insurance, but also the same for all retirees. They handle worî ers 
compensation claims and other insurance purchased by individual employees not provided by the school 
system. Currently these clerics report to the Director of Finance. 

Recommendation: We believe there is a need for a Risk Manager or Employee Benefits Specialist. This 
person would supervise and direct the current secretaries/clerk. This new position should have ti-aining in 
insurance, safety engineering, risk management, and/or contract law. 

Management's response: An Employee Benefits Manager will be hired in January, 2010. 

20D9-M14 Assistant Superintendents 

Comment: Currentiy, the Assistant Superintendent of Administration has Directors and Supervisors of the 
following departments reporting directiy to him: 

Finance 
Planning/Purchasing 
Transportation 
Maintenance 
Human Resources 
Student Services 
*Principals (as it relates to personnel) 
*Special Education (as it relates to personnel) 
*lnstructional Services (as it relates to media) 
*Technology (as it relates to personnel) 

The above departments that are marked with an asterisk report to both the Assistant Superintendent of 
Administration and the Assistant Superintendent of Academic Affairs. We do not believe tiiat it is efficient 
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or effective for a department to report to both Assistant Superintendents even if it relates to separate 
issues. In addition, we believe the Assistant Superintendent of Administration currentiy has too many 
departinents or employees to supervise effectively. 

Recommendatiom Cun-ently, the Superintendent supervises Uie two Assistant Superintendents, the 
Director of Security, and the Intemal Auditor. To reduce the number of people directiy reporting to the 
Assistant Superintendents, we recommend that the Finance, Human Resources, and Technology 
departments be moved directiy under tiie Superintendent 

In addition, we recommend that the Director of Special Education and the Supervisor of Instiuctional 
Services report only to the Assistant Superintendent of Academic Affairs instead of both Assistant 
Superintendents. If there are issues conceming personnel, they should be handled by the Director of 
Human Resources. 

Management's response: This recommendation has been implemented. 

2009-M15 Computer Software 

Comment: There is a need for an updated Accounting, Fixed Asset, and Purchasing Software. The 
mainframe software often requires the intervention of a programmer to produce reports. In addition it has 
limitations in tiie areas of fixed assets/inventory and purchase orders. 

Recommendation; We recommend developing a Software Task Force made up of representatives from 
various departments. This task force should investigate various software programs and options for school 
disti-icts and request proposals from software providers. Ultimately, the task force will make a 
recommendation to the School Board. 

Management's response: Staff will review this recommendation. 

2009-M16 Pay Scale and Employee Classification 

Comment: We noted that there is a need to review the status of all employees to ensure that their 
position and job duties are correctly classified as exempt or non-exempt (salaried vs. houriy). 

Recommendation: The School Board should evaluate employee classifications for propriety. If there are 
positions classified incon-ectly, this leaves the School Board potentially vulnerable for violations of fair 
labor standards. While this evaluation is being performed, consideration should be given to the pay scale 
to detennine if it is reflective ofthe responsibilities of tiie employees. 

Management's response: Employee classification will be evaluated for propriety. 

This report is intended solely for ttie information and use of the Board, management, others wiUiin the 
School Board, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Although the intended use of tiiese reports may 
be limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by Uie Office of tiie Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor as a public document 

Tsocseevis. W4CC«y AHI> Con 
ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
December 23, 2009 
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ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 
CertUkd Public Accouatants, CoosuJtants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Board Members 
Bossier Parish School Board 
Benton, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Bossier 
Parish School Board ("School Board"), solely to assist you in evaluating the effectiveness of the 
School Board's compliance with Act 743 of 1995 conceming the Bossier Educational Excellence 
Fund (BEEF) (a permanent fund of the Bossier Parish School Board) for the year ended June 30. 
2009. The Bossier Parish School Board's management is responsible for the School Board's 
compliance with those requirements. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted 
in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Publk: 
Accountants. The sufftdency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties 
specified in this report Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described betow either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for 
any other purpose. 

Our procedures and findings are as follows: 

1. Obtained the balances and a summary of the activity of the BEEF funds from the School 
Board as of and for the year ended June 30,2009. 

Comment: Summarized below are the balances and a summary of the £u:ttvtty of the 
BEEF funds extracted from the School Board's general ledger as of and for the year 
ended June 30,2009: 

Cash 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Accounts payable 

Reserved for instructional enhancement 

Revenues: 
Gaming revenue 
touteiana downs 
Interest Earnings 

ExpenditLA^s 
Net activity for the year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

g 

397.598 
25.014,113 

365.242 

(55.724) 

25,721,229 

3.030.588 
5 1 ^ 6 

357.716 
(464.182) 

2,975.348 

Judgmentally selected two rivert>oats from the BEEF general ledger and recateulated the 
amounts received during the fiscal year ended June 30. 2009. totaling $2,347,953, or 
77% of total fees collected. The amounts were recalculated using infomnation obtained 
from the Louisiana Department of Public Safety and Con-ections Offk^e of the State Police 
Rivertx^at Gaming Division. They were then compared to a vaKdated bank deposit slip. 
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We tested to assure that 

a. The school is receiving the con'ect amount from the casino per written 
agreement 

Comment: We tested the revenue as indk:ated above and noted the school is receiving 
the correct amount from the casinos per the written agreement 

Reviewed the amount of interest calculated as of December 31. 2007 and the total 
amount of expenditures for the period from January 1, 2008 to December 31.2008. LSA-
R.S. 17:408.2 requires that 

a. The BEEF was established 

b. The BEEF is a permanent tmst fund 

c. The bank account for the BEEF is in the official repository of the Bossier Parish 
School Board 

d. The monies in the BEEF were held and invested on behalf of the Bossier Parish 
School Board. 

e. The investment income from the BEEF accounts was withdrawn by the Bossier 
Parish School Board only during January ofthe calendar year. 

Comment: We noted the BEEF fund was an established permanent trust fund, the bank 
account is in the official repository of the School Board and the monies were hekj and 
invested on behalf of the School Board. However, the School Board did not withdraw 
BEEF investment income only during January of the calendar year. 

Compared the investments of the monies hekl in the BEEF bank account to the types of 
investments allowed by the State of Louisiana. LSA-R.S. 17:408.2B requires that: 

a. The monies in the BEEF were invested in direct obligatk^ns of the United States 
govemment and in time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the 
laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in Louisiana. 

b. The amount of eamings in the BEEF was kept account of separately from the 
fund principal. 

Comment: All BEEF investments were invested in direct obligations of the United States 
or in time certifrcates of deposit with no exceptions noted. The School Board's current 
practrce is to calculate, on a calendar year t>asis, the amount of interest income eamed 
from BEEF investments. The School Board limits BEEF expenditures in the following 
calendar year to the cateutated amount of interest income. Any anxnint unspent in the 
folk)wing calendar year remains in the principal of the fund. As such, no account is being 
maintained separately from the prmcipal fund; however, the eamings for the calendar 
year are maintained separately on an Excel spreadsheet 

5. Obtained a general ledger detail of the BEEF fund expenditure activity. We judgmentally 
selected 25 expenditures totaling $222,450, or 48% of total BEEF disbursements, and 
agreed the expenditure amount to the invoice. We reviewed the invoice to ensure all 
distkirsements were approved based on the School Board's required policy and 
expended solely for the purposes of instructional enhancement as defined below 



Enhancement may indude: 

• Provision for materials and supplies, including computers and other technok)9ical 
upgrades: 

• Training for students, faculty and administrators on the use of materials: 

• Professk)nal development of teachers: 

• Establishment of exemplary programs of instruction. 

Enhancement may not indude: 

• Costs of additional administrators; 

• Increases in salaries of benefits for employees, or maintenance or custodial costs 

Comment: All BEEF expenditures tested were noted as approved based on the School 
Board's policy and expended solely for the purpose of instructional enhancement. 

Recalculated the amount of interest being removed from the BEEF as recorded in the 
BEEF general ledger. 

Comment: We recalculated the amount of interest subject to removal without exceptk>n: 
however; as discussed in step 4. no account is bemg maintained separately from the 
princtpai fund. A separate accounting of expenditures is being maintained with 
instructk)ns to not exceed the calculated interest income. 

Compared approval of expenditures tested in step 5 to the School Board's required 
policy. 

Comment: We verified expenditures tested m step 5 were approved in compliance with 
the School Board's required polk^. 

ROBERTS, CHERRY AND COMPANY 

A Corporation of Certified Publk: Accountants 
Shreveport, Louisiana 
December 23.2009 




